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Notice to Members

NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninth annual general meeting {AGM) of the members of Payswiff
Technologies Private Limited will be held at 02.00 p.m. on Tuesday, the 20" September 2022 at the
Registered Office of the company at 2-48/5/6, Vaishnavi's Cynosure, 10th floor Opp. RTTC, Telecom Nagar
Extn, Gachibowli Hyderabad Rangareddi, Telangana- 500032 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the folowing as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED THAT the board’s report, the statement of profit & loss, the cash flow statement for the year
ended 31 March, 2022 and the balance sheet as at that date, including the consolidated financial
statements, together with the independent auditors’ report thereon be and are hereby considered,

approved and adopted.

2. Toconsider and if deemed fit, to pass the following as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED THAT Mr., Prabhuram Radhakrishnan (DIN: 01673968}, who retires by rotation and being
eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the

company liable to retire by rotation.

3. Toconsider and if deemed fit, to pass the following as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 141, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, {including any statutory
modification(s} or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendations of
the Board of Directors of the Company, Sundaram & Srinivasan, Chartered Accountants bearing Firm
Registration Number 004207S be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a
period of five (5) years from the conclusion of ninth annual general meeting till the conclusion of the
fourteenth annual general meeting at a remuneration not exceeding Rs. 10 Lakhs {Rupees Ten lakhs only) far |.
the financial year 2022-23 including the actual traveling and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection '

with the audit in addition to taxes as applicabie.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the company be and is hereby authorised to fix the
remuneration payable to the statutory auditors of the company, from time to time in addition to the actual
travelling and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit and taxes as applicable, during

the appointed period.

Place: Chennai
Date: 06 July 2022 Prabt

NOTES:

1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the annuai general meeting {AGM} may appoint ane or
more proxies to attend and vote instead of him. The proxy need not be a member of the company.
Proxy to be vaiid shall be deposited at the registered office of the company at least forty-eight hours
before the time for holding the meeting. A persan shall not act as a proxy for more than fifty
members and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (ten percent) of the total share capital of
the company carrving voting rights. A person hoiding mare than 10% {ten percent) of the tatal share
capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other persan ar shareholder.

Carporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Meeting ore
requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote ot the Meeting.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding and the Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested will be available for inspection by
the members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be ovailable for
inspection without any fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date
of AGM.

Members are requested to inform immediately any change in their address to the registered affice

of the campany.

Route map of the venue is attached herewith.

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited

Regd. Off: 10th Floor, Vaishnavi's Cynosure, Opp: RTTC, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500032, Tel: +91-40-4713 6666

512 Palm Springs, Malad Link Read, Malad West, Mumbai — 400 064, Tel: +91-22-4947 1111
Email: info@payswiff.com | Website: www.payswiff.com | CIN: U74900TG2013PTCO89686






Payswiff

SUCCESS CREDITED.

BOARD’S REPORT

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Ninth annual report together with the audited
accounts of the company for the year ended 31% March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rs.}

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Gross Income 6,96,61,605 1,67,35,952
Loss (39,22,95,884} {15,31,15,605)

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Your Company is engaged in the business of enabling ontine payment gateway services for
ecommerce businesses and provides e-commerce solutions. The company is an omni-channel
payment transaction solution that lets business owners accept payments from their customers in-
store, at heme deliveries, online, and en-the-go using mPOS and POS solutions.

Your Company had executed the Sharehoiders Agreement and Share Purchase Agreement on 17tF
January 2022 by and amongst the Company, Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company
Limited (CIFCL} and others. Pursuant to the above and on compietion of various conditions
precedent by the Company and Founders, the investment by CIFCL was made on 8" February 2022.
Consequent to investment, the Company has become a subsidiary of CIFCL and is falling within the
definition of a public limited company as per Section 2(71)(b) of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and all the provisions under the Act applicable to public limited companies are applicable to the
Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The company has not transferred any amount to the reserves during the year under review.

DIVIDEND

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the Company as on the date of Balance sheet is was Rs.
5,00,00,000/- [Rupees Five Crores only] divided into 50,00,000 [Fifty lakhs) equity shares of Rs. 10/-
[Rupees Ten] each. The paid-up share capital of the Company was Rs. 3,75,65,680 {Rupees Three
Crores Seventy-Five Lacs Sixty-Five Thousand Six Hundred Eighty only). During the year, there was an
increase in the paid-up capital by Rs. 44.60 Lakhs, conseguent to allotment of shares upon exercise of
stock options by employees under the company’s employee stock option scheme, private placement

ersion of share warrant into equity.
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OPERATIONS

During the year, the company achieved an income of Rs, 284.60 crores as against Rs. 210.62 crores of
previous year and incurred a loss of Rs. 33.78 crores as against Rs. 11.54 crores in FY 21.

QUTLOOK

The Company will continue to focus on e-commerce business,

DIRECTORS
Appeointment/Re-appointment:

As of 31" March 2022, Mr. D Arulselvan, Mr. Abhay Deshpande Raosaheb, Mr. Prabhuram
Radhakrishnan, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Kundu, Mr. Arun Venkatachalam are the directors of the
company. During the financial year under review:

*  Mr. Prabhuram Rodhakrishnan (DIN: 01673968) was appointed as a Managing Director with
effect from 15 March 2022 for a period of 3 yeors;

* Mr. Ravindra Kumar Kundu (DIN: 07337155) was appointed as an additionol directar at the
board meeting held on 11™ March 2022 and subsequently appointed as non-executive director
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 15" March 2022. Mr. Ravindro Kumar Kundu was
appeointed as the Chairman of the Company;

s Mr. D. Aruiselvan (DIN: 00010065) was appointed as an additional director at the board
meeting heid an 11% March 2022 and subsequently appointed as nan-executive director at an
extragordinary general meeting held on 15™ March 2022;

*  Mr. Arun Venkatacholom (DIN: 09511397) was appointed as an additional director at the board
meeting held on 11% March 2022 and subsequently appointed as non-executive director at on
extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15% March 2022;

Mr. Prabhuram Radhakrishnan, Managing Director (DIN: 01673968), retires hy rotation at the
ensuing AGM and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

Resignation:

During the financial year, Mr. Mitesh Majithia {DIN: 01957915), Mrs. Priti Maulik Shah [DIN;
06654231) and Mr, Ravi Kiran Pedarla {DIN: 06654269) resigned from the directorship of the
company with effect from 11t March 2022. The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the
mdidnnes ~e A mo wtion provided by the Directors during their tenure of office.
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DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Appointment of independent directors for the Company for the financial year 2021-22 did not apply and
therefore a statement on declaration by Independent Directors under Section 149(6} of the Act is not

applicable,

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Act read with the rules made there under Mr.
Prabhuram Radhakrishnan (DIN: 01673968), Managing Director, is the whole-time key managerial
personnel of the company during FY 2021-22.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company was not required to constitute any committee during the financial year 2021-22.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors’ responsibifity statement as required under section 134(3)(c) of the Act, reporting the
compliance with accounting standards is attached and forms part of the board’s report.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators / courts / tribunals which wouid impact
the going concern status of the company and its future operations.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Statutory Auditor iM/s. Walker
Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants {ICAl Firm Registration No. 001076N/ N500013} were
appointed Statutory Auditor of the Company at the 4™ AGM heid on 29" September 2017 to hold office
firom the conclusiun uf Lhe said teeling Ll Ur concluston of the 9% AGM W be held In the year 2022.
The term of office of M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, as Statutory Auditors of the Company is expiring at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the company. The Board of directors at its meeting held on
6™ July 2022 have recommended the appointment of M/s. Sundaram & Srinivasan, Chartered
Accountants as the statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of 9t
10f 14 AGM, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
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ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with section 134{3){a) and 92(3} of the Act, the annual return in Form MGT-7 is placed
on the website of the Company and is available on the weblink

BOARD MEETINGS

Curing the year, the board met five times on 09 June 2021, 24 August 2021, 25 September 2021, 06
January 2022 and 11 March 2022 The gap between the two consecutive Board meetings did not
exceed the maximum number of days as specified in the Companies Act, 2013,

REMUNERATION POLICY, CRITERIA FOR BOARD NOMINATION & SENIOR MANAGEMENT
APPOINTMENTSs

The Company was not required to formulate any remuneration policy, criteria for board nomination
during the financial year 2021-22.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The annual performance evaluation of the board and of individual directors were not applicable to
the Company during the financial year 2021-22.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of loans and guarantees given and investments made during the financial year are provided
in Notes to Financial Statement forming a part of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties that were entered into during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and were on an arm’s length basis. There are no materiaily significant
related party transactions made by the company with promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
company at large. There are no contracts or arrangements entered into with related parties during
the year to be disclosed under sections 188{1) and 134{h) of the Act in form AOC-2.

1as any pecuniary relationship or transaction vis-a-vis the company.

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNCLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
ouUTGO

The Company has no activity relating to the consumption of energy or technology absorption. During
the year, the company has not incurred any foreign outflow / foreign inflow.

DETAILS OF ADEQIJACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal control frameworks are established in the organization. These are reviewed periodically at

all levels.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The company has established whistie-blower mechanism to provide an avenue to raise concerns.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMIENT

The company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment in line with the requirements
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Waorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. An internal complaints committee (ICC} has been set up to redress the complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy. During the calendar year
31 Decemnber 2021, there were no referrais received by ICC.

HIGHUGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has two subsidiaries viz., Payswiff Services Private Limited {PSEPL) and Payswiff Solutions
Private Limited. (PSOPL). PSEPL recorded a gross income of Rs.65.77 Lakhs for the year ended 31% March,
2022 and made a Profit of Rs. 60.52 Lakhs. PSOPL recorded a gross income of Rs. 284.90 Crores and
incurred a loss of Rs. 9.94 crores for the year ended 315 March 2022.

The statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a company’s subsidiaries,
under the first proviso to sub-section (3} of section 129 in Form AQC-1 is enclosed as Annexure A.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, the Company had no employees whose remuneration exceeded the limit
prescribed pursuant to the Companies {(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014,

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013
es (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014 and as such no principal or interest was
ite. As on 31 March 2022, the Company does not have any outstanding deposit.

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Vaishnavi's Cynosure, Opp: RTTC, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500032, Tel: +$1-40-4713 6666
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EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS

During the year under review, the company has not issued any equity share with differential voting rights
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES

During the year under review, the company has not issued any sweat equity shares to directors /
employees under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ISSUE OF EMPLOYEE 5TOCK OPTIONS ("ESOP”)

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the shareholders on 05th December 2016, the board has
formulated an employee stock option scheme (ESOP). During the year, the company has allotted 88,973
equity shares of Rs. 10 each pursuant to exercise of ESOP under Paynear Technologies Empioyees Stock
Option Scheme — Scheme A, The shareholders at an extra-ordinary general meeting held on 24" January
2022 have approved the extension of exercise period on the eligible options from existing 2 years to 4
years from the date of resignation of the emplayee in the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions relating to corperate social responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules do not apply to the Company.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
COST AUDIT AND MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section
148(1} of the Companies Act, 2613 are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the
Company,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND SIGNING OF THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which
:en the end of the financial year and date of this report.

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has complied with afl the provisions of secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India in respect of meetings of the board of directors and general meetings

held during the year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your directors wish to thank the customers bankers and other business partners. The directors also
thank the employees of the company for their contribution to the company’s operations during the

year under review.

Date; 06 July 2022
Place: Chennai

Forand cn behalfofthe B--~" " ™" tors of

PAYSWIFF TECHNOLOGIE MITED

PRABHUR . _ . . .. RAVINDRA KUMAR KUNDU
Managing Director Chairman

DIN: 01673968 DIN: 07337155
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

{Annexure to the Board’s Report)

The board of directors have put in place a framework of internal financial controls and compliance
systems, which is reviewed by the management and board and independently reviewed by the
internal, statutory and secretarial auditors. Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the board of directors, confirm that:

i

if.

#il.

iv.

Vi,

Place: Chennai

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and that there were no material departurestherefrom;

they have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the statutory auditors and have
applied their recornmendations consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so os to give a true and foir view of the state af affairs of the company
as at 31 March, 2022 and of the profit of the company for the year ended on that date;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Componies Act, 2013, far safequarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irreqularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern bosis; and

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internol financial controls are adequate ond were aperating effectively during the year ended 31
March, 2022; and

proper system has been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions af alf applicable laws
and thot such systems were adeguate and operating effectively during the year ended 31 March,
2022,

PRABHU,
RAVINDRA KUMAR KUNDU
Chairman
DIN: Q7337155

Date: 06" July 2022

Payswiff Technalogies Private Limited
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {(Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries

Mame T tne Kupsidiary

Payswitt Services Private
Limited

Payswit Solutions Private
Limited

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company's reporting

period

31 March 2022

31 March 2022

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant financial year in the case of

foreign subsidiaries

NA

MNA

Share capital 100 35472
Reserves & surplus (34) 79796
Total assets 197 759366
Total Liabilities 131 644098
Investments - -
Turnover 431 2813720
Profit before taxation 6096 (134017)
Provision for taxation - 2310
Profit after taxation 6056 {136327)
Proposed Dividend - -
% of shareholding 100% 100%

Additional Information:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:

Note: During the financial year 2021-22, the Company have sold one of its subsidiary ie. Payswiff Pte Lid,
Singapore by way of transfer of shares hefd in it.

Date: 06 july 2022
Place: Chennai

PRAE

For and on behalf of the
FSWIFF TECHNOLOt

Managing Director

DIN: 01673968

Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Walker Chandick & Co LLP

Unit No — 1, 1Gth Floor,

My Heme Twitza, APIIC,
Hyderabad Knowiedge City,
Raidurg (Panmaktha} Village,
Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad — 500081
Telangana

T+91 40 4859 7178

F +91 40 6630 8230

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Fiow and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards {'Ind AS’)
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2022, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

........................ VYdIKE! LNanaick & Lo LLP 1S registared
. o with limited liability wath identification
Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Xaghi, Kalkata, Mumbai, New Delni, Noida and Pune number AAC-2085 and has its registered
é office at L-41 Cannaught Circus, Outer
Circle, New Deitw. 110001 india
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

5. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Gompany’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabte, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic afternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;
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9.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internat control that we
identify during our audit,

Other maftter

10.The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

11.

12.

13.

and 31 March 2020 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) on which we issued auditor's reports to the
members of the Company dated 25 September 2021 and 26 December 2020 respectively. These financial
statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on
transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, As required by Section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company
has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) In respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the

Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
port in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us.

i, The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at 31
March 2022.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term cantracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeahle losses as at 31 March 2022.

fii. ~ There were no amounts which were require to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the company during the year ended 31 March 2022.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 33(i} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’} or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in note 33(ii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ('the Funding Parties’}, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (k) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 00T076N/N500013

(Vb 1ed

Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213356

UDIN: 22213356AQS5SMM2332

Place: Hyderabhad
Date; 6 July 2022
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i} (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right to use assets,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, piant and equipment
under which the assets are physically verified once in every three years, which in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance
with this program, no property, plant and equipment were required to be verified during the year.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under this clause 3 {ii)(a) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

{b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) (@) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries during the
year as per details given below:
(Amount in ¥ thousands)
Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances
in nature

nf laane

Aggregate amount granted during the year:
- Subsidiaries - - 240,000 -

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect of above cases:
- Subsidiaries - - 147,972 -

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.
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(c)

(iv)

v

(vi)

Chartered Accountants

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of l[oans granted by the Company, to one of the
subsidiaries, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular. In respect of loans and
advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, to its other subsidiaries, the schedule
of repayment of principal has not been stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as
to whether the repayments of principal are regular. Further, no interest is receivable on such
loans and advances in the nature of loans.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to one
of the subsidiaries. In respect of loans granted to other subsidiaries, owing to absence of
stipulated schedule of repayment of principal in respect of loans or advances in the nature of
loans, we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more
than 90 days. Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal
amounts.

The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen due
during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settie the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan that existed as at the beginning of the year. In respect of interest
free loans granted which are repayable on demand, according to the information and explanation
given to us, such loans have not been demanded for repayment as on date.

The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand as per details
{Amount in ¥ thousands)

Particulars All Parties | Promoters | Related
Parties

Aggregate of loans

- Repayable on demand (A} 11,290 - 11,280

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of

repayment {B) - - -

Total {A+B) 11,290 - 11,290

Percentage of loans to the total loans 8% - 8%

tn our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. The details of the non-compliances are
given below:

(Amount in ¥ thousands)

Particulars Name of the Company Amount Balance as on
involved during | 31 March 2022
the year

Interest free loans given to | Payswiff Services Private - 11,290

subsidiaries Limited

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Sections 185 of the Act.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of

Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.
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{vii) {(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and seivices tax, provident fund, sales-tax, service tax, , duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable,
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though income-tax and
Goods and services Tax have not generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities and there have been significant delays in a large number of cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b}According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

{viiiy  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts,

{ix) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings to any lender or in the payment of interest thereon, except
for the below:

‘Amount in ¥ thousands)

Nature of | Name of lender | Amount not | Whether principal or | No. of | Remarks,
borrowing, paid on due | interest days if any
including debt date delay
securities
Unsecured NavBharat ¥42,500 | Repayment of 20
ioans Potteries Private principal
Limited 24,621 | Interest payable for | 9-21
the quarter ended
June 2021,

September 2021 and
December 2021.

Jaya Leasing & 21,083 | Principal and interest | 57 — 61
Finance Private payable
Limited
Loans availed 767,500 | Repayment of 20
from principal
shareholders of 7,340 | interest payable for | 9-21
the Company the quarter ended

June 2021,

September 2021 and
December 2021

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term loans
outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall

axamination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
.erm basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.
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(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the

financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(fy According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In our opinion and according to

{xi) (a)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

{xvif)

{xviii)

the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of
Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further,
the amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were
raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit.

No report under Section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period
covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act. The defails
of such related party transactions have heen disclosed in the standalone financiat statements etc., as
required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
constitute an audit committee under Section 177 of the Act. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system under Section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal audit
system. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According fo the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3{xvi)(a}, {b} and (c} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial years amounting to 233,572 thousands and ¥121,883 thousands
respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{xix}

(xx)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company, We further state that our
reporting is hased on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as
specified under Section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility

Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xxi} The reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicahle in respect of audit of standalone financial

statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Mol \/e..f

Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213356
UDIN: 22213356AQSSMM2332

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 6 July 2022

Chartared Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Payswiff Technologies
Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
{'the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India {the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued
by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by
the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
hecessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company, and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076 N/N500013

ML \fc_j

Nikhil Vaid

Partner

Membership No.: 213356

UDIN: 22213356AQ55MM2332

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 6 July 2022
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Payswifl Technologics Private Limited
Balance Sheer as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in T thousands, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

As at
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Assets
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2,760 9,261 15,8860
Right-of-use assets 6 - 4,647 10,224
Other intangible assets 5 - 38 3,688
Financial assets
i, Investnents 7 624,525 #17.036 621,808
i, Loans B - 2,991 2,576
iil. Other financial assets 9 - - 2,234
Non-cusrent tax asscts 4,868 444 3,258
631,953 834,417 659,674
Curtent assets
Financial assets
i. Trade reccivables 10 1,409 414 486
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 1 10,276 14,871 15,142
iii. Loans 8 136,672 - -
iv. Other financial assets 9 - 2,569 -
Contract assets 12 - 7,49 -
Onher current assets 13 11,799 5,574 5,026
Total current assets 160,156 30,877 20,654
Total Assets 792,109 865,294 680,328
Equity and liabilitics
Equity
Equity share capitat 14 37,566 33,100 31,674
Other equity 15 705,385 529,211 470,188
Total equity 742,951 562,317 5{11,862
LiaDhilities
Non-curtent liabilitics
Financial liabilities
i. Lease liabilides [ - - 4,024
Provisiuns 16 5,020 3,704 1,501
Total non-current Habilities 5,020 3,704 5,525
Current liabilitics
Financial Liahilicies
i. Dorrowings 19 - 138,740 134,523
ii. Lease linbilices 6 - 1,671 5,480
iii. Trade payables
() total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 64 41 25
(b) total outstanding dues of creditots other than micro enterprises and 21,258 2,653 2,846
small enterprises
iv. Other financial liabilities 17 16,115 148,758 22536
Pravisinns 16 4,4%6 3,103 1,959
Other current linbilides 18 2,205 1,307 5,572
‘Total current liabilities 44,138 299,273 172,941
Total liabilities 49,158 302,977 178,466
Total eguity and labilities 792,104 865,294 680,328

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of cven date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Charicred Accountants

Finn's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ikhll Vaid
Partner

Membership Ne: 213356

Place: Hyderabadl
Date: 06 July 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Direr

Treoerid @ Tanhnnlamios Brivate Limit
R
L
DiIN:1673%38 C

Place: Fiyderabad
Date: 06 July 2022
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ thousauds, except for share data or as otherwisc stated)

For the year ended

Not
otes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 21 67,031 13,349
Other income 22 15,528 4,137
Total income 82,559 17,486
Expenses
Employce benefit expense 23 202,099 90,661
Finance costs 24 34,297 39,573
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 11,186 15,852
Other expenses 26 65,107 6,156
Total expenses 312,689 152,242
Loss before exceptional itemns and tax {230,130) (134,756}
Exceptional items 27 (219,236 -
Lass before tax (449,366) (134,756)
Tax expense - -
Loss for the year (449,366) {134,756)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that wilf not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 719 (941)
Changes in Fair value of FYTOCI instruments - (14,003
Income tax relating to these items - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (719) (14,944)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (450,085) (149,700)
Earnings per equity share [EPES]) (in absolute ¥ terms) 28
Par value per share 10 10
Basic and diluted EPS (134.22) (42.12)
The accompanying notes are an integral parr of these standalone financial statements
‘This is the Statcment of Profit and Loss referred to in our
report of even date,
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Tos modme b1 8k W eeed ~f Djrecto
Chartered Accountants Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N /N500013
NT y Lf l’c-.
ikhil Vaid 1 ud
Partner Managing Dirccror Director
Membership No: 2132 DIN:1673963 DIN:7337155

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06 July 2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06 July 20:22
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Payswill Technologies Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ thousands, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before max (449,366) (134,756}
Adjustrents for:
Depreciatiun and amortisation expense 11,184 15,852
Fmployee srock compensation expense 96,834 13,029
Finance ensts 34,297 39,573
Payables no longer required written back (14,028) {3,000)
Loss on sale of investments 219,236 -
Provision for doubtful advances - 221
Interest income (800) (1,137
Operating loss before working capital chanpes (103,241) (70,218)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in trade receivables (995) 72
Changes in other financial assets 2,954 -
Changes in other assets 1,224 (7,997
Changes in provisions 1,990 2,400
Chaages in trade payables 18,629 2,823
Changes in other financial liabilities (136,237) 148,314
Changes in other corrent liahilities 418 {4.265)
Cash generated from / (used in} operating actlvities (215,258) 71,135
Income taxes refund / (paid) (4.424) 2814
Net cash generated from / {used in) operating activities A (219,682) 73,949
Cash fluws from investing activities
Investments in subsidiasies (2,937) {226,995)
Loans o subsidiades (136,672 (221)
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments 8,154 -
Interest received - 387
MNer cash used In investing activities B {131,455} (226,829)
Cash flows [rom financing activities
Proceeds from jssuance of share capital 506,028 178,357
Proceeds / (repayment) from short-texm horrowings, net (138,740) 4217
Interest paid (15,812} (24,103)
Lease rentls puid (4,934) (5,862)
Net cash generated from financing activities c 346,542 152,609
Net change i cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (4,595) (27)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 14,871 15,142
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the year (Refer note 11} 10,276 14,871
This is the Cash Flow Smiement referred to in our report of even date
For Walleer Chandiok & Co LLP Tirr and na bohalfaf the Boaed of Directors
Chartered Accountants Limited
Firm's Repistration No,: 0 7777 7777777
pil Ved

ikhil Vaid 1 du

Parner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 213356 DIN: 1673968 DIN:7337155

Place: Hydezabad
Date: 06 July 2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06 July 2022
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ thousands, except for share dats or as otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

date

Tartner

No. of sharcs Amount
As at April 1, 2020 3,167,370 31,674
Chanes in equity share capital 143,190 1,432
As at March 31, 2021 3,310,560 33,106
Changes in equity share capital 446,008 4,460
As at March 31, 2022 3,756,568 37,566
B. Other equity
Reserves and Surplus Other
comptehensive
income (OCI)
Falr value Total
Securities Share . Retained theough OCI
premium compensation catnlngs (FYTOCI) -
reserve equity
instruments
Balance as at 1 April 2020 876,468 53,850 {460,130) - 470,188
Premium on shares issued during the year 176,925 - - - 176,925
Stock compensation cost for the year - 31,798 - - 31,798
Loss for the year - - (134,7506) - (134,756)
Other comprehensive income - - (941) (14,003} (14,944}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,053,393 85,548 (595,82T) (14,003) 529,211
Premium on shares issued during the year 594,900 - - - 594,900
Stock compensation cost for the year - 124,691 - 124,691
Loss for the year - - (449,366) - {449,366)
Other comprehensive income . - (719} - b))
Transfer on allorment of equity shares pursuant to ESOP scheme - {93,338 - - (93,338)
Transfer on de-tecognition of equity instrament - - {14,003 14,003 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,648,299 117,001 (1,059,915) - 705,385
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity refexred to in our report of even
TFor Walker Chandiolc & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Doard of T
Chartered Accountants Parondif Tachnnlanies Private [j
Firm's Repistration No.: 001076N/N500013
n
ikhil Vaid
Managing Dircctor PU
Membership No: 213356 DIN:1673968 DIN:7337155

Place: Hyderabad
Datc: 06 July 2022
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Payswiff ‘T'echnologies Private Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the erstwhile Companics Act, 1956. The Company is head quattered in Hyderabad, India. The Company
is engaged in the business of providing software suppott setvices.

The standalone financial statements ate approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 6 July 2022.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standatds
{Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), read with the Companies {(Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time including accounting principles generally accepted
in India and presentation requirement of Division I of Schedule ITI to the Act, including the amendments to Schedule
ITI notified by the Ministry of Corpotate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its notification dated 24 March 2021.

For all the periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). These financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are the first, which the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS {refer
note 39 for the explanation of transition to Ind AS). For the purpose of comparatives, financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are also prepated under Ind AS. The figures for the previous period have been restated,
regrouped and reclassified wherever required to combly with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule I11.

These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS
that are effective at the Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2022,

b) Functional and presentation cutrency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

¢) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepated on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Net defined benefit liability Present value of defined benefit oblipations
Financial assets and labilities Amortised Cost

d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and undetlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncettainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a matetial
adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment.

ant and non-current classification
nd liabilities of the Company are classified into current and non-cutrent.
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Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
s itis expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
o it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting petiod, ot

s itis cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities ‘
A liability is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:
» Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e 1tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilides are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Opetrating cycle:

Based on the nature of activities and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle within 12 months for the purpose of
cutrrent /non-current classification of its assets and liabilities.

2.2.2 Leases

Company as a Lessee:

Right-of-use assets:

The Company recognises right-of use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incutred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably cettain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the
end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term., Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities:

At the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index ot a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exetcising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment

ng the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing ra
ment date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the c
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date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying
asset.

2.2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration rcceived or receivable excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and reduced by any rebates and trade discount allowed.

Revenne from sofhware development services
Revenue from software development services is recognised when related scrvices are rendered and billed as per the
terms of the agreement entered.

Consultairey services
Revenue from consultancy services is recognised on the basis of actual work performed, in line with the relevant
consultancy agreement.

Interest inconie

Intetest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective intetest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the conttactual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are catried at cost less accumulaied depreciation and any aecumulated impairment, if
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition ate capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use,
as intended by the management. Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the
Company and cost of the item can be measured teliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment ate
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All repait and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss duting the reporting petiod in which they are incurted.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retitement of an item of property, plant and equipment is detetmined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets as prescribed under Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013.

2.2,5 Other intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets, such as software are measuted initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are catried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impaitment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on straight line basis over an estimated useful life of three years.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are mcasured as the diffetence between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

2.2.6 Financial instruments
o """ itrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial |
another entity,
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The Company tecognizes a financial asset or a financial lability in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the
Company becomes patty to the contractual provisions of the insttument

Recognition and initial measnrevient

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, in which case they are recognised at fair value. The Company’s trade receivables do
not contain any significant financing component and hence are measuted at the transaction price measured under Ind
AS 115,

A financial asset, other than trade receivables or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not
at fair value through profit and loss (FV'I'PL), transaction costs that are dircctly attributable to its acquisition o issue
are also adjusted.

Subsequent measnrenient

Financtal assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at (i) amortised cost, (if} fair value through profit or
loss or (iii} fair value through other comprehensive income, on the basis of:

¢ the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
» the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to theit initial recognition, except if and in the petiod the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

b} the contractual terms of the financial asset give nse on specified dates to cash flows uua ate solely payments
of ptincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective intetest rate. The effective intetest rate amortisation is included in othet
income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses artising from impairment are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through othet comprehensive income (FVOCI) if these financial assets are
held within a business inodel with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows of to sell
these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, the Company has elected to
recognise its investments in equity insttuments in subsidiaries and associates at cost the financial statements in
accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’,

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amottised cost or FVOCI ate measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Finaurial ﬁnh;l‘ifie_f

it and measirement
ilities are initialty measured at fair value. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if 1
ling, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabil
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are measured at fair value and net gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amottised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recogniscd in statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the existing obligation is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
otiginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective cartying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit of loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is repotted in the balance sheet if there is a
cutrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.2.7 Impaitment of assets

Nosr-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than deferred tax
assets) to determine whether there is any indication on impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For the putpose of impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs), Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to sell. Value
in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
teflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the catrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in ptior periods, the Company reviews at
each reporting date whether there is any indiratinn that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is teversed if there has been a change in th mates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is
made only to the extent that the asset’s car. ;... amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amottisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures. The Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impaitment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit tisk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. Howevet, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in 2 subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

fference between all contractual cash flows that ate due to the Company in accordance wi
h flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
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instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period
is recorded as expense/ income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2.8 Provisions and contingent habilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to scttle the obligation
and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected furure cash flows (reptesenting the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
tisks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating
losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities ate possible obligations that atise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurtence or non-occutrenee of one or mote future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Where
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be requited, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the prohability of outflow of economic henefits is remote.

2.2,9 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service rendered by employees.
Employee bencfits include shott-term employee benefits and post-employment benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

When an employee has rendeted service to the company dufing an accounting period, the Company recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a liability
(accrued expense), after deducting any amount alteady paid and as an expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected
to be utlized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the
expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Post-employment benefite

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits which are payable after the completion of employment. Post-
employment benefits consist of defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Defired contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are plans undet which the Company pays fixed contributions into a fund and will have no
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all cmployee benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined contribution
plan in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no
liability for future Provident Fund benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an
expense in the year it is incurred.

Defined benefet plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan coveting all employees. The plan provides for
fump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after setving
for the stipulated year mentioned under “The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The Company accounts for liability of
future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability
as at the reporting date. Actuatial gain / losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Share-based paynients

The starl antions of the Company granted to the employecs are measuted at the fair value of the options at the grant
nt recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of options forw' " * * ° °
-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately rec:
of options that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the v
 options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost / inve
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companies over the vesting period on a straight line basis. The amount recognised as expense in cach year is arrived
at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount
recognised as an expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within other equity, which is 2
free reserve in nature.

2.2,10 Foreign cutrencies
Transactions in foreign currencics are translated into the functional cuttency of the Company at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions,

Monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the reporting date are translated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign cutrency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the petiod, adjusted for effective interest and
payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of
the reporting period.

Non-monetaty items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange difference on restatement/ settlement of all monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Foteign eutrency gains and losses are reported on a net basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2.11 Income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Itis recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised ditectly in equity of in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Cutrent tax comptises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable of receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes. [t is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Cuttent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there s a legally enforceable tight to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the cattying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the ex+=~+ that it is ptobable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of t......2d tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or thete is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the teporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities hnt thev intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and li:

eously.
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2.2.12 Operating segment
Operating segments ate repotted in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Deccision Maker (“CODM”). The Board of Directors of the Company has been identified as the CODM.

2,2.13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) pet share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shates outstanding during the period. Diluted carnings per
shate are computed using the weighted average number of cquity and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding
during the period, except where the tesults would be anti-dilutive.

2.2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

otiginal matutity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the putpose
of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks.

2.2.15 Cash flow statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past ot future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing ot financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing, and financing activites of the Company are segregated.

3. Standards and recent pronouncements issued but not yet effective

MCA vide its notification dated 23 March 2022 has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 to furthet amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, which are effective from 1
April 2022. The amendments ate extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required

by law.
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4 Property, plant and cquipment

Office Furnitute and Leaschold
. Computera X . Total
equipment fittings improvements
Deemed catrylng amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 3422 554 151 11,759 15,886
Addidons - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3422 554 151 11,759 15,885
Additions - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,422 554 151 11,759 15,886
Depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - - - - -
Charge for the year 1,176 138 19 5,092 6,625
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,176 338 19 5,092 6,625
Charge for the year 1,392 - 17 5,092 6,501
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,568 338 6 10,184 13,126
Net block
As at 1 April 2020 3,422 554 151 11,759 15,886
As at 31 March 2021 2,246 216 132 6,067 9,261
As at 31 March 2022 854 216 115 1,575 2,760
Decmed cost as on 1 April 2020
Gross block as on 1 Apnl 2020 6,601 4,313 208 26,762 37,884
Less: Accumulated deprecimion will April 202¢ (3.179 {3,759 (57) {15,003 (21,998)
Net block considered as deemed cost upon transition 3422 554 151 11,759 15,886
5 Othet Intangibie assets
Software Total

Deemed carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 3,698 3,688
Additions - -
Balance as at 3} March 2021 3,688 3,688
Additions - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,688 3,688
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Charge for the year 3,050 3,650
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,650 3,650
Charge for the year 38 38
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,688 3,688
Net block
As ar 1 April 2020 3,688 3,688
As at 31 March 2021 38 38
As at 31 March 2022 - -
Deemed cost as on 1 April 2020
Gtoss block as on 1 April 2020 27,922 27,922
Less:Accumulnted amortsation tll Apeil 2020 {24,234y {24,234)
Net block censidered as deemed cost upon transition 3,688 3,688
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6 Ripht-of-use assels

Buildings

Lease liabilitics
Non-current
Currenr

{a) Breakup of the ROU Asset on the date of transition is as follows:

Particulars Amount
ROU Asset on 1 April 2020 10,224
Diepreciation for the year 5,577
RO Asset on 31 March 2021 4,647
Depreciation For the year 4,647
ROU Asset on 35 March 2022 -

() Brealmp of the lease liability on the date of transition is as follows:
Particulars Amount

Lease liability on 1 April 2020 9,504
Interest expense for the year 1,029
Lease payment during the year (5,562)
Lease lability on 31 March 2021 4,671
Interest expense for the year 263
Lease payment during the year (4,934)
Lease liability on 31 March 2022 -

() The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assers
Interest expense (included in finance costs)

{d) Details of the contractual maturlties of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

Less than one year
One o three years
More than three years

7 HNon-current investments

Investment in equity shares, unquoted
Tuvesimenits iy substdiaries (measnred af coit)

3,547,214 (31 Macch 2021: 3,547,214; 1 April 2020: 3,316,433) equity shares of T10 each fully paid-

up in Payswiff Solwions Private Limired

10,000 (31 March 2021: 10,000; | Apri! 2020: 10,000) equiry shares of T10 each fully paid-up in
Payswifl Services Private Limited

Nil (31 March 2021: Nil; 1 April 2020 10,000) equity shares of T10 each fully paid-up in Paynear
T Paymoets Private Limited (net of impaitment of 100 thousands as at 1 April 2020).

Nil (31 March 2021 Nil; 1 April 2020: 135,681} cquity shares of TE0 each fully paid-up in
Localbell Infolabs Privatc Limited (oet of impairment of 3,501 thousands as ar 1 April 2020).

Nil (31 March 2021: 3,495000; 1 April 2020: 3,330,000} cquity shares of Singapore: Tdollar 1 each
fully paid-up in Payswiff Pte Ltd., Singapare

Others fweasured it foir pabee through otber comprehensive income)
Nil (31 Mareh 2021: 19,339; 1 April 2020: 19,339} equity shares of 10 each fully paid up in Hita
Informates Private Limited

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggrepate buok value of unquoted investments
Agpregate amount of impairment in the vahie of invesoments
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As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
_ 4647 10,224
- 4,647 10,224
- - 4,024
. 4,671 5480
- 4,671 9,504
For the year ended
31 Marely 2022 31 March 2021
4,647 5,577
263 1,029
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Aprll 2020
- 4,934 5,862
- - 4,934
B 4,94 10,796
As at
31 March 2022 31 Macch 2021 1 April 2020
624,225 596,369 396,954
100 100 100
- 220,067 210,251
624,325 816,536 607,305
- 500 14,503
624,325 817,036 621,808
624,325 817,036 625,409
- - 3,601
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7 Non-eurrent investments (continaed)

Details of proportion of ownership and voling rights

As at
Name of the entity Country of incorporation 3 Morch 2023 31 March 2021 T Aprl 2020
Payswiff Solutions Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Pryswitf Servives Private Limited India 100.40% 100.00% 100.00%
Paynear B Paymenis Privase Limived ladia - NA¥ 100.00%
Eocalbells Infotabs Private Limited India - NA¥ 100.00%
Payswiff Pre Ltd.# Singapore - 100.00% 100.00%

* Pursuant to an application filed in accordance with Section 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 and approval received from the Office of the Registrar of
Companies ("ROC") dated 30 March 2021 and 08 April 2021, the names of Paynear Ii Payments Private Limited and Localbells Infolabs Private Limited,

respeciively, has been seruck-off from the records of the ROC and nccordingly these subsidiaries stand disssolved.

# The Company has disposed of its stake in Payswiff Pte Ltd, Sinpapore during the year ended 31 March 2022

8 Loans

As at
31 March 2022 31 Maech 2021 1 April 2020
Non-current
Loans to subsidiaries (Unsecured, considered goocl) - 2991 2,576
N 2,991 2,576
Curtrent
Loans to subsidiaries (Unscoused)
Considered good 136,672 - -
Credit impaired 11,290 11,290 11,070
147,962 11,290 11,070
Less: allowance for bad and doubtful loans (11,290 {11,200) {11,070}
136,672 - -
Break up of loans to related parties:
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Payswiff PTT Eimited - 2,991 2,576
Payswiff Services Private Limited 11,2%0 11,200 11,070
Payswif Solutions Private Limited 136,672 - -
Naote:
Details of outstanding loans granted to related parties (as defined tnder the Act) that are repayable on demand are as under:
Asat
31 March 2022 M March 2021 1 April 2020
Ourstanding balance 11,290 14,281 13,646
Percentape to the total gross loan portfolio 8% 100% 100%
% Ocher financial asacts
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Now-crirreni ‘
Security deposits - - 2,234
- - 1,234
Crrrent
Security deposits - 2,569 -
- 2,569 -
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Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Unsecured receivables, considered good 1,409 414 4806
Unsecured receivables, with significant inerease in credit risk - - -
1,409 414 486
Trade receivables ageing schedule:
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Undispuled recelvables, considered good
Oustanding for following perinds from the due date of payment
Less than ¢ months 497 414 486
6 maonths - 1 year 498 - -
1- 2 years 414 - -
2 -3 yeurs - - -
1,409 414 486
Nates:

Thete ate no uadisputed reecivables outstanding which are eredit impaired or with significant increase in credit sk as at the reporting periods.
Thete ate uo disputed receivables ontstanding as at the reporung periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2022 31 Mazch 2021 1 April 2020
Dalances with banks
- in curgent accounts 10,276 14,87 15,142
Cash ou hand - - -
10,276 14,871 15,142
Conitact assels
As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Curtent - 7449 -
- 7,449 -
Other current assets
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Balances with government authorities 11,799 5,574 5026
11,799 5,574 5,026
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14 Equity share¢ caplial As at
31 March 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
2022

Authorised equity share capital
50,006,000 (31 March 2021: 50,00,000, L April 2020: 50,00,000) equity shares of 210 each 50,000 50,000 5,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital
37,56,568 (31 March 2021: 33,10,560, | April 2020: 31,67,370) equity shares of 10 cach 37 5660 33,106 31,674

(a) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the bepinning and at the end of the reporting perod

As at
Name of the share holdes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Number of Amount Number of Amount MNumber of Amount
shares shares shates
Outstanding ar the beginning of the year 3,310,560 33,106 3,167,370 31,674 2,893,947 28,940
Add: Shates issued during the year 446,008 4,460 143,190 1,432 273423 2,73
Qutstanding ar the end of the year 3,756,568 37,5606 3,310,560 33,106 3,167,370 31,674
{b) Terms / tlghts attached o equity sharca
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. Tn the event of liquidation,
equity share holders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company, afier disuibution of all preferenrial ameunts, The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholdecs.
{c) Details of shure holderg holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at
Name of the share halder 3 March 202;. - 31 March 20?’: - 1Apdl 202[]0/ g
" O () (R
Number holding Number holding Number holding
Hqulty shaze of Ttk each
Cholamandalany Investment and Finance Campany Linited {"CIFL") 2,713,227 73.82% - - - -
Prabhutam Radhaksishnan 484,944 12.91% 744,209 2248% 749,913 23.68%
Ramesh Chandea Majitha - - 465,466 14.06% 465,465 1L70%
Tirupati Sugars Limited - - 295,234 8.92% 205,234 9.32%
Priti Maulik Shah - - 184,612 5.58% 184,612 5.83%
Sashi Reddi Investrment Advisors Private Limited - - 182,447 5.51% - 0.00%
As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations teceived from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represenes both lepal and beneficial ownership of shares.
(d)} Details of sharcholding of prometers
Ag at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 Ad at 1 April 2020
WWame of the promoter o of % of % of % of % of % of
’ Number holdlng change Number holding change Number holding change
Y Anil Bharadwaj 89,605 2.30% -26.10% 121,252 3.66% 0.62% 120,510 3.80% -6.13%
Maulik Dipin Shalu 91,289 2.43% -25.10% 123,530 3,75% 0.00% 123,530 390% -5.61%
Priti Shah 138,293 3.68% -25.09% 184,612 5.58% 0.00% 184,612 L.83% -4.09%
Ravi Kiran 89,605 2.39% -26.10% 121,252 3.66% 0.62% 120,510 3.80% -6,13%
I<tishna Kishote 84,605 2.39% -26.10% 121,252 3.66% 0.62% 120,510 3.80% -6.13%
Prabliuam Radhaktishnan 484,944 12.91% -34.84% 744,209 22.48% -0,76% 749,913 23.68% -7.32%

(¢) Shares reserved for issues under warrants and coutracts

() Share warrants

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Warrant Agreement ("the Agreement”) dated 27 May 2020, the Company has issued warrants to Sashi Reddi Invesmment Advisors Private
Limited (the "Investor") representing the right to subscrihe to 110,526 equity shares of T each at a price of 5 per eqnicy share of the Company, Warrants could be
exercised by the Investor earlice of (i) three years from the date of the issue or (i) date of occurence of the gualified financing or (i) date uf oeeureance of change of conrrol
event as defined in the Agreement. Dusing the year ended 31 March 2022, the warrznts have been exercised and accordingly 110,526 equity shares of W0 each at # price of
2950 per equity share has been alloted / issued by the Company.
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(ii)
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(b}
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Employce $tock Option Plan{ESOP)

“I'he Company has instituted Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 (the "Scheme") for all the cligible employees of the Company and ks subsidiatics. Under the Scheme, the
Board of Directors has been authorized to grant share-based stock options to elipible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. These stock oprions will generally vest
hetween a minimum of one 10 a maximvm of four years from the grant date subject to continnance of employment. Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, employees will have
an oplion v cxcecise the vested option within theee years from the date of vesting at 110 per equity shace of 10 ench, being its exercise price,

The fallowing table summarizes the options pranted vnder the Scheme to the eligible enaployees of the Company and its sulpsidiaries:

Particulars Grant 1 Grant 11 Grant 1 Granc IV
Date of grant 1-[an-18 Varjous dates 30-Sep-20 1-Apr-21
Number of options granred 25,133 107,267 5,399 71,780
Fair value of options 914.45 914.45 - 1,483.02 1,301.09
1483.02
Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity Equity
Graded vesting perod
Day following the expiry of 12 months from grant 62.5% 25.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Day following the expiry of 24 months from grant 12.5% 25,0% NA NA
Day following the expiry of 36 months from grant 12.5% 25.0% NA NA
Day following the expiry of 48 months from grant 12.5% 25.0% NA MNA
275 2,65 2.50 3.00

Weighted average of remaining contmciual life in years

Nao. of options

31 March H March
2022 2021
Options gutstanding at the beginning of the year 102,117 77,700
Granted dusning the year 71,780 39,776
Forfeited duting the year 6,107) (15,359)
Bxercised during the year (B8,973) -
Oplions outstanding at the end of the year 78,817 102,117
Opiions exercisable at the end of the year - 50,066
Fair value of options was estimated as the date of graot using Blark and Scholes options pricing model with the following assumptions:
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Risk free (%) 7.22% 6.21%
Expected volality (Vo) 20.00% 20,00%
Fixpense reengnized for employee serviees received during the year are ns below:
31 Match 31 March
2022 2021
Espense arising from eyuity-settled shate-based payment transactions 96,834 13,024
Investment (FSOP issned 1o employees of subsidiary companies} 27,857 18,76%
T'otal expense arising from share-based payment transactions 124,691 31,798
Other equity
As at
I1March 31 March 2021 1 Apdl 2020
2022
Reserve and surplus
Securities premium 1,648,299 1,053,393 876,468
Share epdons outsianling reserve 117,001 85,048 53,850
Retained carnings (1,059.915) (595,827)  (460,130)
705,385 543,214 470,188
Qiher comprehensive income
FYTOCI - equity insuuments - {14,003) -
705,385 529,211 470,188

Sccurities premium
Seenrities premium is used to record the premium en issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance
with the previsions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Shote vptions outstanding reserve
Shares options outstanding reserve is in the natmre of share based payment reserve used to tecognise the grant date fair value of options issued by the Company ro the

employees of the Company.

FYTOQCI instruments
The Company has clected t reeognise the change in fair volue of certain investments in other comprehensive income, These changes are accumulated within the FYTOCI
instruments reserve within cquity. The Company transfers amounts from this seserve to tetained carnings when the relevant instrurments are derecognised.
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16 Employee benefit obligations

a,

=

k)
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As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

Non-current
Gratuity 5,020 3,704 1,50t

5,020 3,704 1,501
Current
Gratuity 1,026 554 734
Leave encashment 3,470 2,549 1,225

4,496 3,103 1,959

Gratuity:

“The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Grawity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a
period of 5 years are eligible far grawity. The amount of gratuity payable on retircinent/termination is the employecs last drawn basic salary per month
compnted propottionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The grawity planis a unfunded plan.

Amonnts recognised in the balance sheet and the movementa in the net defined benefit obligation over the yeat arc a3 follows:

As at
31 Match 2022 31 March 2021

Defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI
Cutrent service cost 1,136 93]
Interest expense 281 152
Defined benefit cost inclhuded in P & L 1417 1,083
Remeasurement recognised in OCI
Acturiat (gain)/loss on defined henefit obligation 719 041

719 941
Total defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI 2,136 2,024
Net defined benefit liability reconciliation
Net Defined Benefit Liabitity at the beginning 4,258 2,235
Defined Benefit Cost included in P & L 1,417 1,083
Total Remcasurements incladed in OCE 19 941
Employer Divect Benefit Payments (348) -
Net Defined Benefit Liability / {Asset) at the end 6,046 4,258
Net (asact) / liability
Present value of defined benefit obligation 6,046 4,258
[Fair value of plan assets - -
Net defmed benefit liability/ (asset) recognized in balance sheet 6,046 4,258
Classification
Current 1,026 554
Non current 5,020 3,704

6,046 4,258

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions
The significant actuarial assuinptions were as follows: 3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 7A0% 6.89%
Salary escalation rate 0% to 4% 0% to 4%
Withdrawal rate 16.56% 16.56%
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions are as under:

Change in assumptions

Salary escalation - up by 1% - Tmpact
Salary escalation - down by 1% - Impact
Withdrawa) rates - up by 1% - Impact
Withdrawal raees - down by 1% - Impact
Discount rates - up by 1% - ITmpact
Discount rates - down by 1% - Impact

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
340 256

(313) (235

40 13

) 9

(268) (205)

205 226

Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumptions namely discount rate, withdrawal rates and salary assurnptions have been shown in the
table above at the end of the reportng petiod, showing how the defined benefir obligation would have been affected by the changes, The rmethod
used to caleulate the Liability in thesc scenartus is by keeping all the other parametets and the data same as in the base liahility calculation cxcept the
parametess o be stressed. There have been no chaages from the previous petiods in the methods and assamptions used in preparing the sensitivity

analyses.
Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Baxpected future cash flows (undiscounted)
Year 1 1,026 554
Year 2 990 651
Year 3 880 649
Year 4 785 578
Year 5 703 509
Year 6 tw 10 2,519 1,759
Total 6,903 4,700
The weighted average duration of the defincd benefit gbligation is 7,35 years.
Other current financial Habilities
Asg at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

Employee related liabilities 16,115 16,980 15,516
Security deposits from customers - 131,732 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 46 3873
Others - B 3,147

16,115 148,758 22,536
Qther current liabilities

As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Statutory dues 2,205 1,307 5,572
2,205 1,307 5,572
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i)

Current borrowings
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Unsecured
Repayable ant densand, fron*
Directors - - 15,250
Members - 8,000 10,566
Others - 21,755 2,800
Otlr laans, from™
Members - 67,500 67,500
Others - 41,485 38,407
- 138,740 134,523
Notes:
Other loans are repayable within 12 months of drawdown. Further, out of the total borrowings, loans apgregating 1o TN (31 March 2021: 3130,000 thousands;
1 April 2020: T112,566 thousands) carry an interest of 15% p.a. payable on a quarterly basis and loans aggrepating to Il (31 March 2021: 9,755 thousauds; 1
April 2020: 326,050 thonsands) are interest free.
*+Out of the above, Prabhumm Radhakrishnan, Managing Director and Kamesh Chandra Majitha, Member and relative of a Dircctor, have pledped a portion of
their holding in the Company in conncction with the loans availed by the Company aggregating to TNii (31 March 2021 ¥130,000,000; 1 April 2020; INil}.
Net Debt reconciliation:
Current Non-current Interest
borrowings borrowings agcrued
Net debt as at T April 2020 134,523 - -
Cash flows (net) 4,217 - -
Interest accrued during year - - 20,276
Interest paid during the pedod - - {20,276}
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 138,740 - -
Cash llows {neg) (138,740 R
Interest accrued during year - - 15,766
Interest paid during the period - - (15,766)
Net debt as at 31 Mareh 2022 - - -
‘Trade payables
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Apd1 2020
Total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 64 41 25
Total putstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21,258 2,653 2,846
21,322 2,694 2,871
Ageing of trade payables
Undisputed Disputed
MSME COthers MSME Others
As at 31 March 2022
Less than 1 Year 30 21,258 - -
1-2 years 34 - - -
2-3 years - - - -
More thau 3 years - - - -
64 21,258 - -
As at 31 March 2021
Less than 1 Year 41 2,653 - -
1-2 years - - -
2-3 years - - - -
More than 3 years - - - -
41 2,653 - -
As atl Apdl 2020
Less than 1 Year 25 2,846 - -
1-2 years - - - -
2.3 years - - -
More than 3 years - - - -
25 2,846 - -
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21 Revenue from contracts with customers

22

26

Sale of services

Changes in contract asset are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Invoices raised that were included in the contract assets balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts billed during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other income

Interyst income on financials assets measured at amortised cost

Payables no longer required,written back
Others

Employee benefit expense

Salarics, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident fund
Employce sharc oprions expense
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on boreowings
Interest on lcase liabilides
Interest on financiat liabilities

Depreciaton and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortsation of inangible assets

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rates and taxcs
Communication

ILegal and professional charges
Software expenscs

Printing and stationary
Provision for doubtful advances
Payments to auditors

- towards statatory audit

- towards certification fee

- towatds out of pocket expenses
Bank charges

Miscellaoeous expenses
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For the year ended
M Maich 2022 31 March 2021
67,031 13,349
67,031 13,349
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
7,449 -
7,449) :
- 7449
- 7,449
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BAD 750
14,628 3,000
100 387
15,528 4,137
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mazch 2021
101,926 74,558
1,878 1,752
96,834 13,029
1,417 1,083
44 139
202,099 90,661
Fot the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
15,766 20,276
263 1,02%
18,268 18,268
34,297 39,573
Far the year ended
31 Matrch 2022 31 March 2021
6,501 6,625
4,647 5,577
38 3,650
11,186 15,852
For the year ended
31 Macch 2022 31 March 2021
1,361 1482
709 303
549 861
61,098 878
295 217
59 i8
- 221
620 620
- 300
- 15
96 40
320 1,091
065,107 6,156
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Exceptional items
Exceptional itermn represents loss on account of sale of investment held in Payswiff PTE Limited, including recovery of receivable balances, pursuant to the Shase
“Transfer Agreement dated 2 February 2022 entered between the Company and Chols Business Services Limited and Prabhuram Radhaksishnau,

Earnings per equity share (EPES)

For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1.oss attributable to the equity holders (449,360) (134,750)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the calculation of basic EPES 3,347,886 3,199,364
Add: Effect of potential dilutive equity shares* - -

Weighted average number of shates considered for computation of Diluted EPES 3,347,886 3,199,364

Earnings per equity share (in absolute )
- Pasic and diluted EPS (134.22) (42.12)

*the cffect of potential equity shares are not considesed in the computation of Diluted BPES as they ase anti dilutive.
Segment reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Operating Segments, segment information has been given in the consoliitated financial statements of Payswiff Technologies
Prvate Limited and therefore no separate disclosure on segment information is piven in these financial statements.

Thete ate no condngent liabilities outstanding as at 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2020,

The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified on the basis of informatiou availahble with the Company. This has been relied upun by the auditors. Details
of dnes to such parties are given below:

As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Aprll 2020
a) The peincipal amount remaining unpaid as at the end of the year 64 41 25
b) The amonnt of intesest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - - -
¢} Amount of interest paid by the company in terms of Section 16, of (MSMED Act 2006) - - -
along with the amounts of payments made beyoud the appointed date during the year,

d) Amounit of intecese due and payable for the pedod of delay in making payment without the - - -
interest specified under the (MSMED Act 2006)

&) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years, antl - - -
such date when the intercst dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the

purpose of disallowance as a deductble expenditure under Section 23 of the (MSMED Act

2006)

Capital risk management

The Company’s objeetive when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide remuins for
sharchnlders and benefits for stakeholders aod to maintain an optimal eapital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Hence, the Company may adjust any
dividend payments, remro capiml to shareholders or issue new shares or sell asscts to reduce debt. Total capital is the equity as shown in the statement of
financial position. Currently, the Company primarily monitors its eapital structure on the basis of the following gearing ratio. Management is continuously
evolving strategies to optimize the returns and reduce the tisks. It inchedes plans to optimize the finzncial leverage of the Company.

As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Total borrowings - 143,411 144,027
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (10,276) (14,871) (15,142
Net Debt - 128,340 128,885
Total equity 742,951 562,317 501,862
Net debt 1o equity mtio 0.00% 22.86% 25.68%

Disclosure pursiant to requirements of Rule 11(e) (i) & (i) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sourees or kind of funds) by the Company 1o
or in any ather person(s) or entity(ies), including foseign entides (“Intermediaries™) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneficiarics).

Details of funds received by the Company from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirecily lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beucficiaries are as under:

Ami t Dat
Name of the Funding Party oun e of Name U.f the Amount remitted Dah.e of

received rececipt Beneficiary remittance
Cholamandalam Investments and Finance Company 400,000 30 March 2022 Payawill Solutions 240,000 31 March 2022
Limited Private Limited

46



Payewiff Technologics Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in ¥ thousands, except for shace data or as otherwisc stated)
34 Related party disclosures

(a) Nane of related parties and nature of relationship

Narme of the related party

Natute of relationship

Cholamandalam Investments and Finance Company Limited ("CIFCL")

(w.e.f 17 January 2022} Holding company
Payswiff Solutions Ptivate Limited ("PSPL")
Payswiff Services Private Limited Subsidiarics

Payswiff PTE [.td, Singapore {till 2 February 2022)

Prabhuram Radhakrishnan

Maulik Bipin Shah (@l 17 January 2022)

Prig Mauiik Shah

Mitesh Majithia (dll 17 January 2022)

Ravi Kiran Pedatla (ull 17 Janvary 2022)
Anil Bharadwaj Vedam (ill [7 January 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel {"KMP")

Ramcsh Chandra Majithia {dll 17 January 2022)

Relative of KMP

(b) Transactions with related patties

Payswiff Solutions Private Limited
Consultancy services

Loans advanced

Issuance of equity shares

Security deposit received

Payswiff Services Private Limited

Tnterest free loan advanced

Payswiff PTE Ltd
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary

CIFCL
Investment in equity shares of the Company

Prabhuram Radhakrishnan

Investment in equity shares of the Cownpany
Sale of invesonent held in Payswiff PTE Lid
Interest free loan availed

Remuneradon
Prabhuram Radhakrishnan
Maulik Bipin Shah

Ravi Kiran Pedarla

(c) Balances receivable / {payable)

Payswiff Services Private Limited
Payswilf PTE Limited

Payswiff Solutions Private Limited
Prabhuram Radhakrishnan

Anil Bharadwaj Vedam

Ramesh Chandra Majitha

Maulik Bipin Shah

Priti Maulik Shah

Notes:

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
66,131 12,430
240,000 276,216
- 217,926
- 150,000
- 1,871
2,937 9,069
400,000 -
105,000 -
2,283 -
- 5,000
4,700 2,851
3,600 2,851
3,500 2,851
Ag at As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
11,290 11,290 11,070
- 3,406 3,406
136,672 (142,570) -
- {229) G
- - (300%
- (8,000) (8,000}
- {265) (2,204)
N - (8,950)

(i} During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had extended cotporate guaraniee amouating to 92,300 thousands (1 April 2020; 282,060
thousands), in connection with the credit facility availed hy PSPL, which has been prepaid during the year ended 31 March 2022,

(i) Prabhuram Radhakeishnan and Ramesh Chandra Majitha had pledged a portion of their holding in the Company in connection with the loans availed

by the Company {Refer Note: 19).
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35 Analytical Ratios

As at / For the year ended Variance Remarks
31 Match 2022 31 March 2021 %a
Current assets (3) 160,156 30,877 Note A
Current liabilities (b) 44,138 299,273
Current ratio (a/b} 3.63 0.10 3416.92%
Total debt () - 143,411 Note b
Sharcholder's equity (d) 742,951 562,317
Debt equity ratio {c/d) . 0.26 ~100.00%
Taal debt = Long term borrowings + Short term borrowings+Lease liabilities
Farnings available for debr Service (g) (184,647) (79,331) Note C
Debt service (f) 15,766 163,733
Debt service coverage ratio (e/f) (11.74) (0.48) 2317.21%

Tarnings avaitable for debt service = Net profit after tax + Depreciation an amortization expease + Finanee costs + other non operating adjustments.

Debt service = Short term borrowings (including lease liabillics) + Interest accrued

Net profit after taxes () (449,366) (134,756) Note D
Averape sharcholder's equity (h) 652,634 532,090

Return on equity ratio / Return on investment ratio (g/h) (0.09) {0.25) 171.87%
Average shareholder's equity = (Opening + Closing / 2}

Net credit sales (k) 67031 13,349 Note E
Average accounts receivable (1) 912 450

Trade receivables turnover ratio (k/1) 73.50 29,66 WLIT%

Net credit sales = Revenue from operations

Average accounts receivable = {Opening + Closing / 2)

Net sales (o) 67,031 13,349 Notwe A
Working capital (p} 116,018 {268,396)

Net capital turnover ratio {o/p) 0.58 (0.05)  -1261.66%

Net sales = "Toml income

Working capital = Curcent asseis - Corrent Liabilitics

Ne profit (g) (449,366) (134,756) Note D
Net sales (1) 67,031 13,349

Net profit ratio (q/1) (6.70) (10.09) -33.59%

et profit = Net profit after tax

Earnings before interest and taxes () (415,069} u5,183) Note I
Capical employed (8 747,971 566,021

Return on capital employed {s/t) {0.55) (0.17) 230,00%

Capital empioyed = Total asscts - Cureent liabilities

Mote: Reasons for change in % by more than 25% is as under:

Note Az Principal reason for change in the cutsent ratio / net capitl wrnover rario is atttibuted ta decrease in shott-term borrowings and other financial liabilites

during the yeat ended 31 March 2022, resulting in overall decrease in current liabilities as at 31 March 2022,

Mote B: Principal reason for change in the debt equity ratio is attributed to dectease in borrowings on account of repayments and increase in equity from issue of

equity shares during the year ended 31 March 2022, net of Josses repotted.

Note C: Principal reason for change in the debt service coverage rario is aitribnted to decrease in borrowings on account of repagments and increase in the loss

reported by the Compuny during the year ended 31 March 2022

Note D: Principal reason for change in the return on equity ratio / retarn on investment ratio / net profit ratio / return an capital employed is atuibuted o the

higher loss seposted by the Company during the yeat ended 31 March 2022 as compared (o loss reported during the year enderl 31 Macch 2021,

Note E: Principal reason for change in the trade receivables munover tatio is attriburable to the significant increase in the wrnover compared to that of the 31 March

2021,

Analytieal ratios *

As at / Por the year ended janc
a2 S NI Remarks
Current assers (a) 30,877 20,654
Current liabilites (b) 299,273 172,941
Current ratio (a/b) 0.10 0.12 -13.61%
Total debt () 143,411 144,527
Sharchekler's equity (d) 562,317 501,862
Drebt equity catio (c/d) .25 0.29 -11.13%

Toral debt = Long term borrowings + Short term borrawings+ Lease liabilities

* Raatios for the comgparitive period, are discfosed oy for balance sheet itens

48



49



50



Payswill Technologics Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in T thousands, except for share dara or as otherwise stated)

32

a

—

b)

First time adoption of Tnd A8

These ace the Company's first Ainancial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policies, as st out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, For the purposc of transiGon from previous GAAP ta Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed
under Ind A$ 101 - Figst time wloption of Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS 1(1”), with effect from 1 April 2020 (“wansition date”).

In preparing its Iod AS Balance Sheet as ar 1 April 2020 and in presenting the comparative information for the yeat ended 31 March 2021, the Company has adjusted
amounts repotted previously in financial smtements prepaced in accordance with previous GAAP. This note eaplains how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS
has affected the Company's balance sheet and financial performance.

Optional exewnptions availed and mandatory exceptions applied
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS101 optional exempdions and mandatory exceprions applied in the traosidon from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Demed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts
On transition tw Ind AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all of i property, plant and equipteat and inrangible assets recognised as ae 1
April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and usc that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets.

Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 116 roquires an entity tw assess whether 2 contraet or arrangement contains lease. In accordance with Ind AS 116, this assessment should be
carried out at the inception of the conwact or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option 1o make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumseances existing at the
date of transition to Tnd AS, except where the effeet is expected to be not material. The Company has elected to apply this exemption [or such contracts [/ arranpgements.

De-recognition of financial assets and labilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adoptet o apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occutring on of after the dare of ransition to
Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-ime adopter to apply the de-recognidon requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entiy's choosing,
provided thar the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 ro Bnancinl asscts and (inancial liabilities derecopnised as a result of past tmnsactions was obtained at the time
of initially ncconating for thuse transactions. The Company has clected to apply the de-recognition of Ind A8 109 prospectively from the date of wansition w Ind AS.

Share based payments
lud AS 102 Share based payments requires un entity to record the options on their Fair value instead of intrinsic value, Ind A% 101 permits a first tme adopter to ignore
such requirement for the optioos alzeady vested 2 on transition date {i.e., 1 April 2020). The Company has elected to apply this exempHons for such vesied opiicos.

Investment in subsidiares

Ind AS 10 permits a firse-lime adopter ta elect to continue with the cagrying value for all of its investments in snbsidiaries, joint ventures and zssociate as recopnised in
the financial smrements as at the date of transitioo w Ind AS, measured g5 per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. Accordingly,
the Company has elected to measure its investnent in subsidiaries at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Estitnates

As per Ind AS 101, an endty’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of wansition 1w Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accondance with the previeus GAAP unless there is objeclive evidence that those estimates were in error. The Company's estimutes under Ind AS are consistent with the
above wequircment.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilitics

Ind AS 01 reguires an entity o assess classification of linancial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as nn the date of transition. Further, the standard
pecmits measurement off Goancial assers accounted at amortised cost based on faets and circumstances cxisting at the date of ransiion if retrospective application is
impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has desermined the chassification of Bnancial asscts based on facts and cirenmstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the
Financial assets accounted at amurtised cost has been done tetrospeciively excepe where the same is impracticable.

Reconciliations
Reconciliation of 1otal equity

31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Total equity as per previous GAAP 534,209 471,270
Add [ (less] : Adusiments for GAAP diffircuees
Unwinding of discount on security deposit 332 -
Vinance liabiliies measured at amortized cost (16,967) 3,964
Adjustments related to recognition of right to use asset and lease liabiliites under Ind-AS 116 (744 -
Reversal of employee stuck aption expense in respect of options granted 10 employees of subsidiaries 45,307 26,628
Equity as per Ind-AS 562,317 501,862
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Reconcillation of tetal comprehensive income

31 March 2021

Net loss under IGAAT (153,116)
Add:-

Interest income recognized on unwinding of discount on hnancial assets 750
Impact due to accounting of employee stock option plan using faft valuadon model 5,988
Reversal of employee stuck option expense in respect of options granted to employees of subsidiaries 18,769
Finance Babilides measuced at amortized cost (21,347
Reclhssification of gains on re-measurement of defined benefit obligation reclassified to OCI 941
Reversal of loss on investments measuted at FYTOCT 14,003
Adjustments related to recognition of right to usc assct and lease liabiliites under Ind-AS 116 (744)
Laoss afier tax as per Ind AS (134,756}
Other comprehensive income {14,244)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS {149,700)

Notes to the reconciliations

Security depaosita

Under previous GAAP, secudty deposits were initially secognised at transaction price, Subsequently, finance income was recognised based on contractual terms, if any.
Under Ind AS, (i) the security deposits are to be recopnised at fair value, (i) interest income on such security deposits are to be recognised through effective interest
method and (jfi) lease expense to be amordsed aver the period of lease on a straight line basis. Accordingly, the Company has recognised the security deposit at present
value using the market rate of interest and the differential deposit amount is recognised over the period of lease,

Leases

Under Ind AS, each lease arrangement with the exeeption of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, is reflected on the balance sheet as a dpht-ofuse
asset and a lease liahility. Accordingly the Coinpany has used the modified retrospective method to all lease contraces existing as at 1 Aptil 2020, This has resulted in
recognising 4 right-of-use asser and a corresponding lease liabikity. In the Stement of Profit and Loss, operating lease expenses which were recognised as rental expenses
is now recognised as depreciation expense for the right-of-usc asset and finance cost for interest accrued on lease Fability.

LEmployee stock options

Under previous GAAP, the Company had recorded the ESOF Cost using instrinic value per option. However, under Ind AS, the Company has recarded the ESOP cost
using fair valuadon model. Further the Company has institured Eniplayee Stock Option Plan 2018 (the "Scheme”) for all the eligible employees of the Company and its
subsidaries, Under End AS 102, all such share based payment transactions among group eatities are required tw be recognised by the entity receiving the goods or services.
Accordingly, employee stock option expenses permining to opdons granted to the employees of the subsidiaries were derecognised with a cotresponding increase in the
investment vatue.

FVTOCI financial assets

Under Indian GAAP, the Campany accounted for long-term investments at cost less provision far nther than temporary diminution in the value of investmenrs. Under
Ind AS, the Company has desigoated such Investments as FVTOCI. Ind AS requires FYTOCE investments to be measured at fait value, At the date of transition to Ind
AS, difference between the instuments faic value and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been recognised as 1 separate component of equity, in the retained extnings, net
of related deferred Laxes.

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit oblgations

Doth under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related o jts post-cmployment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the
eutire cost, including actuarial gaias and losses, are charged to statement of profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remcasurements comprising of actuarial pains and losses arc
recopnised in the batance sheer with a correspanding dehit or credit to retained earnings through OCL

Retained earnings
Retained enraings as ar 1 April 2020 has been adjusted consequent to the ahave Ind AS zansition adjustments.

Statement of cash flows
The transition from Indiao GAAP ta Ind AS had no material impact on the statement of cash flows

The Boatd of Directors of the Company in their meeting held oo Lt Macch 2022, has approved, subject to regnlatory approvals, the Scheme of Asrangement for
aralpanadon of its subsidiadies, Payswiff Solutions Private Limited and Payswiff Services Private Limited with Payswiff Technologies Private Limited (the “Scheme™)
with an appointed date of 1 April 2022, The Company is in the process of obtaining necessary approvals under applicable laws/regulations ta give cffect to the above
Scheme. Pending necessary approvals, the standalenc financial statements as at aod for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared without giving effect to the
proposed Scheme.

"This is the summary of significant accouming policies and other explavatory

information referred o in our report of even date

TFor Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants P et T T :Limdted

Firm's Registration Mo, 001076N/N500013

N VLA Ve

Nikhil Vaid ™ n
Partner Managing Director Dircctor
Membership No: 21335¢ DIN:1673968 DIN:7337155

Place: Hyderabad
Dae: 06 July 2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06 July 2022
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Payswiff Technologies Private
limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group'), as listed in Annexure A, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31 March 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, and other accounting principtes generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2022, and their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive loss), consolidated
cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

VvaiKer LNangiok & Lo LLH s registered
. . with limited liability with identficalion
Offices in Bengalury, Chandigarh Ghennal, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhl, Moida and Pune numeer AAG-2085 and has its registerad
office at L-41 Connaught Circus, Outer
Circle, New Oelhi, 110001, India
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

4. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’'s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generaliy accepted in India. The Holding
Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial
information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further,
in terms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
covered under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial
statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease aperations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

B. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional jJudgment and maintain professicnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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10.

11.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing an opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attenticn in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based cn the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controf
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial information of two subsidiaries, whose financial information reflects total assets
of T197 thousands and net assets of ¥66 thousands as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥17,389
thousands and net cash outflows amounting to 1,006 thousands for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consclidated financial statements. These financial information are unaudited and have
been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiaries and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is
based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the management, these financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
financial information certified by the management,

The Group had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) on which we issued auditor's reports to
the members of the Holding Company dated 25 September 2021 and 26 December 2020 respectively. These
financial statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Group
on transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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12.

13.

Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(18) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Holding Company and a
subsidiary company covered under the Act has paid remuneration to their respective directors during the
year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act. Further, as stated in paragraph 10, financial statements of a subsidiary company, covered under the Act
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management, and as certified by the management, such
subsidiary has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year, accordingly, reporting
under section 197(16} of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiary.

As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143{11) of the Act based on the consideration of the
Order reports issued till date by us, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2022 and covered under the Act we report that:

A} Following are the qualifications/adverse remarks reported by us in the Order reports of the companies
included in the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 for which such Order
reports have been issued till date:

S No Name CIN Holding Clause
Company / number

Subsidiary of the

CARO

report
which is
gualified

or
adverse
1 Pay swiff Technologies | U74900TG2013PTC089686 | Holding Company | (iv), (vi))
Private Limited fa) and

(ix} (a)
2 Payswiff Solutions Private | U74120TG2012PTC084551 | Subsidiary viiy  (a)
Limited and  (ix)

(a)

B} Following are the companies included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 audited by other auditors, for which the reports under section 143(11) of such companies
have not yet been issued by the other auditors, as per information and explanation given to us by the
management in this respect:

S No Name CIN Subsidiary

1 Payswiff Services Private | U74900TG2013PTC090267 | Subsidiary
Limited

14. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit of the Holding Company and a subsidiary

incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, for all the companies covered under the Act, proper hooks of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consclidated financial statements have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditor.

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
~* account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, covered under the Act, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate repoit in '‘Annexure B’ wherein we have expressed
an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us of the subsidiaries incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act:

Chartarad Accountants

There were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 which would impact the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

The Holding Company, its subsidiary company, did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022.

There were no amounts which were required to be fransferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary company covered under the Act,
during the year ended 31 March 2022,

a)

The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 37(i) to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or
its subsidiary company, to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 37(ii) to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’},
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or
any such subsidiary companies, shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{'Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and
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c) Based on such audit procedures performed by us as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses {a) and (b)
above contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company, its subsidiary company, have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year ended 31 March 2022

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Sl Ve

Partner

Membership No.: 213356
UDIN: 22213356 AQSSTL2¢4

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 6

Chartered Accountants

July 2022
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Annexure A

List of subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial Staterments

Subsidiaries

1. Payswiff Sclutions Private Limited, India

2. Payswiff Services Private Limited, India

3. Payswiff Pte Ltd., Singapore (ceased to be a subsidiary w.e.f. 2 February 2022)
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. Inconjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
(‘the Holding Company'} and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ("Guidance Note"} issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"}). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion cn the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Centrols Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial staterments and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company'sinternal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
) " financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that

tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
tions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reascnable assurance that
tions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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9.

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference fo financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

tn our opinion the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act,
have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements criteria established by the company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matter

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to
a subsidiary, which is a company covered under the Act, whose financial information reflect total assets of
#197 thousands and net assets of ¥66 thousands as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥11,841 thousands
and net cash outflows amounting to ¥7 thousands for the year ended on that date. The internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of this subsidiary company, which is a company covered under
the Act, are unaudited and our opinion under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary, which is a company covered under the Act, is solely based on the corresponding
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements report certified by the management of such
company. in our gpinion and according to the information and explanations given to Us by the management,
this financial information is not material to the Group. Cur opinion is not modified in respect of the above
matter with respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
report certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.. 001076N/N500013

Ve

Partner
Membership No.: 213356
UDIN: 22213356AQS8S8TL241

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 6 July 2022
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Payswill Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 Mazch 2022
(All amounts in ¥ thausands, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Notes As at
31 March 2022 31 Match 2021 1 April 2020

Assets ) )
Non-current agsets
Property, plant and equipment 4 232,138 148,535 165,939
Right-of-use asscts 6 19,711 14,392 25,535
Capital work-in-propress 4A 53,800 - -
Goadwill 114,183 153,023 153,023
Cither jutangible assets 5 15,514 1,434 5,172
Intangible assees under development 4B - 20,281 -
Financial assets
i Investments 7 - 500 23,366
ii. Other financial assets 13 5,822 1,500 2,233
Non-cuerent tax assets 26,368 15453 17,354
Other non-current asscts 8 397 11,972 7,122
Toral nop-current Asscis 520,107 367,090 399,744
Current assets
Inventories L4 12,246 - -
Financial assers
i. Trade receivables 10 100,384 89,543 38,217
it. Cash and cash equivalents il 180,106 97,7110 41,126
fii. Bank balances other than il above t2 9,469 PRYS| 9673
iv. Other financial asscts 13 8,793 7,559 7673
Contract assets 37,534 4,693 12,370
Qther current assets B 36,582 41,911 60,886
Total current asscts 385,114 250,587 169,945
Total assets 905,221 417,677 569,089
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 14 37,566 33,106 31,674
Other equity 15 311,519 111,196 26,842
Total equity 349,085 144,302 58,516
Liabilities
Non-current Jiabilities
Financial Liabilitics
i. Borrowings 16 - 9,459 9,395
ii. Lease liabilities [ 11,942 2,909 11,049
Provisions 20 9,250 7,332 4,201
Total nen-curtent liabilitdes 21,192 19,700 24,645
Currenty liabilitles
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 16 - 155,735 203,059
ii. Lease liabilities [ 7,433 12,865 14,354
i, Trade payables 17

(a) total outstanding dues of nicro and small enterprises 32928 0,050 515

{13) total outstancing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 138,664 93,428 123,963
iv, Orher financial liabilities 18 293,022 158,678 91,685
Contract liabilites 44,013 - -
Provisions 20 10,589 8,151 4,582
Orther current liabilitics 19 §,205 18,768 48,370
Total eurrent liabillties 534,944 453,675 486,528
Tatal linbilities 556,136 473,375 511,173
Tr*~' equity and labilides 905,221 617,677 569,689
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
This is the Cousolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP TFor and on behalf of the Board of Direct
Chartered Accountants e
Firm's Registration No,: (01878 nwrmetn
V/RINRUSS

ikhil Vaid Rav
Partner LFEAURZILE LATECIOL Dire
Membership Nn: 213356 DIN:1673968 DIN:T337155
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Dare: 06 July 2022
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in ¥ thousands, except for share dat or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended
Notes

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations 21 2,820,605 2,080,209
Other income 22 37,832 26,088
Total income 2,858,437 2,106,297
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 552,643 574,102
Changes in inventorics of stock-in-trade 23 (12,246) -
Employee benefit expense 24 427,072 242,249
Finance costs 25 33,597 38,118
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 124,414 118,610
Other expensecs 27 2,105,100 1,241,297
T'otal expenses 3,230,580 2,214,376
Loss before exceptional items and tax (372,143) (108,079)
Exceptional items 36 (50,639 -
Loss before tax (422,782) (108,079)
Income tax expense
- Current tax - -
- Priot period tax 2,310 -
- Deferred tax - -
Total tax expense 2,310 -
Loss for the year (425,092) (108,079)
Other comprehensive income
Herar that wiay be reclassified fo profit or foss
Exchange differences on transladen of foreign operations - {461}
Ift’f"" Fhat widll wns o .?r](,_ﬂ-f'lf v '9P - I L2
Re *post-viapli postn wenefit obligations (1,677) (1,826)
Ch £ of FVTOT instruments - (14,003)
Ine o, to these ite - -
Other eomprehensive income for the year, net of tax {1,677) (16,250)
Total comprehensive income for the year (426,769) {124,369)
Earnings per equity share [EPES] (in absolute ¥ *~-ms) 28
Par value per share 10 10
Basic anc| diluted EPES (12697} (33.7%)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
This 1> wie Consolitawd Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of
even date
Fnw Winlker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
' d Accountants T terrm v s Mt Timbted
- eoeee . pistration No.s NVINTANT /NIANANT A
W ! L i \}c_..
Nikhip Vaid ~ 7 I R:
Partner Brossmgring s snniin Director
Membership No: 2133! DIN:1673968 DIN:7337155

Place: Hydcrabad
Date: 06 July 2022

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06 July 2022
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Staterment for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ thousands, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (422,782) (108,079)
Adjustments for:
Drepreciation and amortisation expense 124,414 118,610
Employee stock compensation expense 124,691 31,798
Finance costs 33,5497 38,118
Intetest income (1,956) (1,953)
Loss on sale of investments 50,639 8,863
Payables no longer required written back (22451) (14,291)
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (113,848) 73,066
Change in operating assetr and liabilities
Changes in inventory (12,240) -
Changes in rade receivables (19,152) (51,326)
Changes in other financial assets (3,820) 3,570
Changes in contract assets
Changes in other assets (56,799 26,652
Changes in provisions 2,679 4,874
Changes in trade payables 94,565 (25,000
Changes in other financial liabilities 29,841 41,876
Changes in contract labilities -
Changes in other current liabilities 33,540 (29,602)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (45,240) 44,116
Income taxes paid (13,225) 1,901
Net cash inflow from / {used in) operating activities A (58,465) 46,017
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (159,357} (66,505)
Proceeds from szle of investments 8,654 -
Movement in other bank balances (4,620) (998)
Interest received 3,437 1,109
Net cash used in investing activities ®) (151,886) (66,394)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 506,028 178,357
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 12,300
Repayment of long-term borrowings (26,344) (50,394)
Proceeds / (repayment) from short-term borrowings, net (138,850) 9,167y
Lease payment (15,593) (15,069}
Interest payment {32,133) (39,060)
Net cash generated from financing activities (©) 293,108 76,961
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 82,757 56,584
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the financial year 97,710 41,126
Less: Adjustment on account of loss of control in a subsidiaty {361) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 180,106 97,710
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement refetted to in our teport of
even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Director:
Chartered Accountants - e, T T ~ imited
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
'

Nibl Ve

ikhil Vaid R
Partner Managing Director D
Membership No: 2133506 DIN:1673968 DIN:7337155
Place: Hyderabad Place; Hydetrabad
Date: 06 July 2022 Date: 06 July 2022
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Payswiff Technologies Ptivate Limited (“Holding Company” or “Parent Company” or “Company”) is a company
domiciled in Inclia and registered under the provisions of the etstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Holding Company
along with its subsidiaries (collectively refetred as “the Group”) is headquartered at Hyderabad. The Group is engaged
in the business of providing omni-channel payment transactions processing services offeting a wide range of
innovative and reliable solutions, streamlining the transaction expetience on a secured platform.

The consolidated financial statements are apptroved for issue by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors on 6 July
2022,

2, Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™), read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time including accounting principles generally
accepted in India and presentation requirement of Division II of Schedule III to the Act, including the amendments
to Schedule I1I notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its notification dated 24 March 2021.

For all the periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2021, the Holding Company has prepared its financial
statemnents in accordance with accounting standatds notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP). These financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are the first, which the Group has prepared in accordance with Ind AS (refer note
41 for the explanation of transition to Ind AS). For the purpose of comparatives, financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 are also prepared under Ind AS. The figures for the previous period have been restated,
regrouped and reclassified wherever required to comply with the requirement of Ind AS and Schedule 111,

These financial statements have been prepared for the Group as a going concetn on the basis of relevant Ind AS that
are effective at the Holding Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2022,

b) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR}, which is also the Holding Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thonsands, unless otherwise indicated.

c) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and all its
subsidiaties (from the date control is gained), being the entities that it controls. Control is evidenced where the investor
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Powet: is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaties to align the accounting policies in line with accounting policies of the Parent Company.

The Holding Company re-assesses whether ur oy it controls an nvestee if facts ana citcumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Holding Company gains control until the date the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary. The Consolidated financial statements include results of the following subsidiaries of the Holding
Company), consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 'Consolidated Financial Statements'.
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Payswiff Technologies Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

All other liabilities are classified as non-cutrent.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle:

Based on the nature of activities and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascestained its operating cycle within 12 months for the putpose of
cuttent /non-current classification of its assets and liabilities.

2.2.2 Leases

Company as a Lessee:

Right-of-use assets:

The Company recognises tight-of-use assets at the commencement date of the Jease (i.c., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incutred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the
end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease tetm. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities:

At the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to he made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index ot a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the petiod on which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Cc—pany uses the incr~~ental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not #eadily deterisunable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accreticas of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. Tn addition, the cattying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment ° purchase the underlying
asset,

2.2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is ptobable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and reduced by any rebates and trade discount allowed.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of
promised products to customers for an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those products. The Company does not expect to have any contracts whete the petiod between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Asa
consequence, it does not require to adjust any of the transaction prices fot the time value of money.

Revenue from services is tecognized when the control in setvices is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with
customer i.e. as and when setvices are rendered. Revenues are disclosed net of the goods and services tax charged on
such services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over +he hilled at the year-end is carried in the balance sheet
as trade receivables where the amount is recoverable from the ymer without any future performance obligation
and the Company has unconditional right over such considera___ i.e. if only the passage of time is required before
wmmmmms ~€ sl congideration is due), Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a contract

- assets are in the nature of unbilled reccivables, which arises when Company satisfies a

ses not have an unconditional right to consideration
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Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross cartying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses.

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if
any, Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for usc,
as intended by the management. Subsequent costs ate capitalised on the catrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when futnre economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the
Company and cost of the item can b ..1easured reliably, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific uscful lives. The
cattying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All repair and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurted.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retitement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the cartying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation on propetty, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013

2.2,5 Goodwill and Other intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transfetred, together with the amount of non-controlling interest in
the acquiree, over the fair value of the Company’s share of identifiable net assets acquired, Goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. In tespect of equity accounted investees, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment, and any impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the cartying value of the equity accounted investee.

Acquired intangible assets, such as software ate measured initially at cost, Following inttial recogpition, intangible
assets are cattied at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized on straight line basis over an estimated useful life of three years.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

2.2.6 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability ot equity
instrument of anothet entity.

The Company tecognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the Balance Sheet when, and only when, the
Company becomes patty to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables ate recognised initially at the amount of ¢--~*deration thar is uncond™i~1al unless they contain
significant financing components, in which case they are recoguuscd at fait value The Corr.p...y’s trade receivables do
not contain any significant financing component and hence ate measured at the uansaction price measured undet Ind
AS 115.

A financial asset, other than trade receivables or financial bability is initfally measured at fair value and, for an item not

at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition of issue
FETEEN P ...-li“.-.a-.-..{
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Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histotical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction,

Exchange difference on restatement/ scttlement of all monetaty items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Foteign currency gains and losses ate reported on a net basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2,11 Income taxes
Income tax comptises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable of receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertaingy, if any, related to income
taxes. Tt is measuted using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities ate offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting putposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of cartied forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that foniwe tavahle nenfire will he ayailable against

which they can be used. The existence of v.._se- ax losses is strong evi srofit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a histors ~f recc... 1~=ses, the Company asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxahle remn .1~ differ....2s or there is conv sufficient taxable
profit will be available against 1 Guactre #ax asset =41 be treali - unrecognised or
recognised, are reviewed at ea... .o date auu are rec ised/ recuccu w we caten wae ac is probable/ no

longer probable respectively that the . lated tax benefit will k.. . calised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilivies are offsct if thete is a leguuy entorceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate  inc....e taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, ot on different tax
entities, but they intend to s~+'~ current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis ot their tax assets and liahilities will be
realised simultaneously,

2.2.12 Operating segment
Opetating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (“CODM”). The Board of Ditectors of the Company has been identified as the CODM.

2.2.13 Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to equity
sharcholdets by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share are computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding
during the period, except where the results would be and-dilutive.

2,214 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original matutity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the putpose
at of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks,
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2.2,15 Cash flow statements

Cash flows are teported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the petiod is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash natute, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing, and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3. Standards and recent pronouncements issued but not yet ~Hective

MCA vide its notification dated 23 Matrch 2022 has notified Conyanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022 to further amend the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, which are effective from 1
April 2022, The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required
by law.

74




75



Payswill Technoloples Private Limited
Notes 10 the consolidated financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in T thousands, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

5

@

Othes intangible assets

Software Total
Decmed carrylng amownt
Balance as at 1 April 2020 5,172 5,172
Additions 260 96l
Foreign exchange adjustment B0 8
Balance as at 31 March 2021 6,212 6,212
Additons 35,859 35,859
Disinvestment of a subsidiary (2,794) (2,799
Balance as at 31 March 2022 39,277 39277
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Charge for the year 4,710 4,710
Foretpn exchange: adjustment 68 68
Balance as at 31 March 2021 4,778 4,778
Charpe for the year 1,779 £,779
Disinvestment of a subsidiary (2,794 2,799
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,763 3,763
Net block
Asat 31 March 2020 5172 5,172
As at 3t March 2021 1,434 1,434
As at 31 March 2022 35,514 35,514
Deemed cost as on 1 April 2020
Gross block as on 1 April 2020 7,482 7482
Less:Accumulated amortisation dll April 2020 {2310 (2,310)
Net btocle ronsidered us deemed cost upon transition 5,172 5172
Right-uf-use assets
As at
M March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Buildings 19,711 14,392 25,535
19,711 14,392 25,535
Lease liapwities
MNon-current 11,942 2,909 11,049
Current 7433 12,865 14,354
19,375 15,774 25,403
The breakup of the ROU Asset on the date of transitlon is as follows:
Particulurs Amount
ROU Asset on 1 Aprll 2020 25,535
Adlditions 3,283
Depreciation on ROU Asset 114,426}
ROU Asgct on 31 March 2021 14,392
Aulditions 18,789
Depreciation en ROU Agsct (13470
ROU Asset ou 31 March 2022 19,711
The bteakup of the Lease liability on the date of transition is as follows!
Particulars Amount
Lease liability on 1 April 2020 25,403
Additions 3,156
Tutceest acerued 2,284
Lease payment (15,06%)
Lease liability on 31 March 2021 15,774
Additions 17,684
Interest accrued 1,510
Lease payment (15,593
Lear- *-*lity on 31 March 2022 19,375
The 1onowing are tlic amonnts recognised in statement of profin and loss:
Foz the ycar ended
31 Masch 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciadon charge of right-of-usc assets 13,470 11,426
Interest expense (included in finance costs) 1,510 2,284
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in other expenses) 1,129 7117
Detalls of the contractual maturities of Icase liabilities on an undiscounted basis is as follows:
Asat
31 March 2022 31 Match 2021 1 April 2020
Less than one year 9724 14,006 14,358
One 1o three years 13,452 3035 13,738
More than three years - - ]
23,175 17,41 28,194
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1
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MNon-current investiments

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Aprl 2020
Investment in cquity shates, unquuted
Tnvesinrent in avsociaies (meassteed af st}
Nil (31 March 2021: Nil; 1 April 2020: 2,000} shares of Rp1,000,000 cach in T Unity Payswiff Indonesia - - 8,154
Nil (31 March 2021: Nil; 1 Apeil 2020: 85,000) shares of TK 10 each in Pagswiff Solutions Limited, Bangladesh - - 709
Otbers (mearared at fair valne throngh other oaprelensive fnrosie)
Nil (31 March 2021: 19,33%; 1 Apcil 2020: 19,339) cquity shares of TL0 each fully paid up in Hila Intormatics Private Lemited - 500 14,503
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments - S00 23,366
Ageregate book value of waguoted investments - 500 23366
Apgrepate amount of impatrment in the value of iovestments - - -
Orher assets
As al
31 Muarch 2022 31 March 2021 1 Apil 2020
MNon-cutrent
Capital advances 3,971 11,972 7122
31,971 11,972 7,122
Currem
Balances with povernmient authorties 3t 8vd 5,574 16,057
Prepaid expenses 4,004 2,389 2,305
Advance {or services 108 5,221 -
Advances tn employees 454 662 ¥
Others 122 28,065 42,348
36,582 41,911 60,886
Inventories
As at
3t March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Traded ponds 12,246 - -
12,246 N -
Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Unsecured receivables, cansidered pond 100,384 89,54 v
Unsecured receivalles, with significant inceease in credit risk - -
100,384 #4543 38,217
Ageing of trade receivables
Asat
31 Macch 2022 3 March 2021 1 Aprl 2020
Undisputed receivables, considered good
Outstanding {for following periods from the due date of payment
Less than 6 months 94,187 58,563 28,903
G months - I year 2,860 980 8,019
1 -2 years 33T - 1,295
2-3years - -
More than 3 years - - -
190,384 69,843 38,247
Nantes:
"There are 0o undisputed receivables outstanding which are credit impaired or with significant increase in credit risk as at the repordag periods.
‘There are oo disputed receivables eusianding as a1 the reponing periods.
Cash and cash equivalents
Asat
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021 1 April 2020
Dalances with banks
- in cuerend accomis 180,071 1,678 41,105
Cash on hand 35 32 21
180,106 97,710 41,126
DBank balances othe than above
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Margin money deposits 9,464 $171 9,671
9,46% 2171 9,673
Other financial assets
As at
31 March 2022 M March 2031 1 April 2020
Nom-wrirrent
Security deposits - - 2,233
Deposits held with banks as margin money 5822 1,500 -
5,822 1,500 2,211
Crrrent
Security depusits 7,698 5480 6,362
Tnterest accrued - 2079 1,311
Orhers 1,005 - -
8,793 7,559 7,673
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14 Equity share capital

As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Apdl 2020

Authorised equity share capital

50,00,000 (31 March 2021: 50,00,000, 1 April 2020: 50,00,000) equity shares of €10 each 50,000 30,000 50,000
Issued, subscribed and fully puid up share capital
37,56,568 {31 March 2021: 33,10,560, 1 Aprit 2020: 31,67,370) equity shares of TH) ench 37,566 33,106 31,674
(a) Reconciliation of the equity shares out ding ar the beginning and at the end of the repoerting perlod
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Apsil 2020
Number of Amount Numbet of Amount Number of Amount
shares ahares shares
Custanding ar the beginning of the year 3,310,560 33,106 3,167,370 31,674 2,893,947 28,940
Add: Sharcs issued duriog the year 444, (KB 4,460 143,150 1,432 273,423 2,734
Ouistending at the end of the year 3,756,568 37,566 3,310,560 33,106 3,167,370 31,674
(5} Tetms / dghts atiachied to equity shares
The Company has only one class of cquity shares having par value of 210 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entiled ro one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the eveot of liquidation, cquity share holders are eligible w
Teceive remaining nssets of the Company, adier distibudon of sl preferential smoums. The distibution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.
{c) Demils of shate hotders holding mote than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 37 March 2022 As ar 31 March 2021 As at 1 Apdl 2020
5
No. of Shares % ?f No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of halding
holding
Equity share of Tlb each
Cholsmandalam Invesmcot and Finance Company Limvited 2,773,227 73.82% - - - -
Prabhumm Radhakrshnan 484,344 12.91% 744,200 22.48% 749,913 23.68%
Ramesh Chandra Majitha - - 465,466 14.06% 465,466 14.70%
Tirupnt Sugars Limited - - 255,234 B92% 205,234 4.32%
Priti hlzulik Shah - - 184,612 5.58% 184,612 5.83%
Sashi Reddi lovestment Advisors Privare Limited - - 182,447 5.51% - -
As per reeneds of the Company, induding its repister of shaveholders/inembers and other declaratinns reccived from sharcholders regarding beneficial inrerest, the shove sharchnlding represents
buth legal and bencficial ownetship of shases,
{d} Details of sharcholding of premoters:
As at 31 March 2022 As ur 31 Maurch 2621 As at 1 April 2020
Name of the pramoter
No pfshares % of holdlng % of change No ofshares % ofboldlng % of change Na of shares %o of holding o of change
V Anil Bharadwaj 89,605 2.3%% -26.10%% 121,252 31.06% 0.62% 120,550 3.80% -6.13%
Meulik Bipin Shah 91,289 243% -26.10% 123,530 3.73% 0.00% 123,530 3.90% -5.01%
Pridi Shah 138,293 2a8% -25.09% 184,612 5.58% 0,00% 184,012 5.83% -4.09%
Ravi Kiran B%,G05 2.30% -26.10% 121,252 3.66% 0.62% 120,510 3.80% -6.13%
Krishna Kishtre 89,605 2.39% -26.10% 121,252 3.66% 0.62% 120,510 3.80% -6.13%
Prabhuram Radhakrishinan 484,944 12.91% -34.84% F,208 22.48% .76% 749,913 23.68% -1.32%
{e) Sharcs reserved for issues under warrants and contracts
() Share warrarns
Pursuant to the terms of the Shace Warrant Agreement ("the Agreeanent”) dated 27 May 2020, the Company has issued warranes to Sashi Reddi Investment Advisors Private Limited (the
“lovestor") representing the right to subscribe m | 10,526 cquity shares of 20 each at a price nf Z950 per equily share of the Holding Company. Warrants could be exercised by the Investor earlier
n (i) three years from the date of the issne or (i) date of vecurence of the qualified fnancing or §ii) date of nccurance of change of control event as defined in the Agreement, During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the warrants have heen exercised and aceordingly 110,526 equity shares of 10 each st a price nf T950 per equity share has been allored / issned by the Holding Company.
@) Emplaoyce Stock Option Plan{ESOF)
The Hulding Company has instimred Employee Siock Option Plan 2018 (the "Scheme") for all the ellgible employees of the Group, Under the Scheme, the Board of Dircctors has been authorized
1o grant share-based stack optinns to eligible employees of the Group. These stock optons will generally vest berween 2 minimum of vne © n maximum of four years fenm the grant date subject
ro centinuance of employment, Pursuant o the terms of the Scheme, employees will have an option o exercise the vested option within three years from the date of vesting at 710 per equity share
of Whea ' ' o ™ exercise pric
(2} "Whe fllowing uhle summasizes the options granted under the Scheme 1o dhe «ligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries:
Pacticulars Grant 1 Grant II Grant III Grant 1V
Date uf granr 1-§a0-18 Various datcs 30-Sep-20 1-Apr-Zi
MNumber of nptions granted 25,133 107,267 5,399 75,830
Fair value of options 1415 914.45 - 1463.02 1,483.02 1,301.09
Alethod of serifement Equity Equiry Equicy Haquizy
Graded Vesting Perind
Day lollowing the expiry of 12 months from grant 62.5% 25.0% L00.0% 100.0%
Dy follawiny the expity of 24 months from grant 12,5% 25.6% NA NA
Day following the expity of 36 months from prant 12.5% 25.0% MNA NA
Day following the expiry of 48 meuths from grant 12.5% 25.0% NA NA
Weipghted average of remaining contncbaal life in years 275 2.65 250 300
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(i) Employee Stock Option Plan(BSOT) (contnued)

®

1

[

No. of aptions
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 102,117 77,700
Grante during the year 71,780 39,776
Forfeited during the year (6,107 {15,159)
Exercised during the year (88,973) -
Options vutstanding at the end of the year 76,817 102,117
Opticns cxercisable at the end of the year - 50,066

Fair value of optiuns was estimated at the date of geant using Diack and Scholes options pricing madel wilh the following assumptions:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Risk free (%4} 1.22% 6.21%
Expected volality (V) 20.00% 20.00%

Expense reengnized for employee services received during the year are as betow:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Townrds options issued 1 the employees of

- Holding Company 96,834 13,029
- Subsicliaries 27,857 18,769
124,691 31,798
Onher eguizy
As at

3 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 Aprl 2020

Reserve and surplus

Securities premium 1,648,299 1,053,393 876,468
Share oplions outstanding reserve 117,601 85,648 53,850
Retained earnings (1,453,781) (1,013,009 (503,104)
311,519 124,032 27,214
Ocher comprehensive income
Forcign curnency translation rescrve - (833) (372)
Fair value through OCI (FYVTOCL) - equity insunments - (14,003) -
- (14,836) (372)
311,519 111,196 26,842

Securllies preminm
Securities preminm is used o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpases such as issunnce of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companics Act, 2014

Share options outstanding reserve
Shares oprions outstanding reserve is in the nature of share based payment reserve used 10 recognise the yrant date fair value of options issued by the Holding Company to the employees of the
Group.

Forelgn currency translation reserve
Exchange differenices arising on transhtion of the forcign vperations are recogpised in other comprehensive income and accamulnied in 4 separate reserve within equity, The cumulative amaunt is
reclassificd m profit or loss when the net investment is dispased-off,

FVTOCI instruments
The Group has elected s recogmise i change in fair value of certain iny in other compreliensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FYTOCT instrumunts reserve within
equity. 'The Group ansfors smounts from this reserve to retvined earainps when che relevant instruments are dereengnised.
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Bortowings
As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Non-current
Secured
Loan from financial institutions - 25452 62,477
Vehicle loans from
Banks - 201 457
Others - 691 1,503
- 26,344 64,437
Less: Cugrent marurities of long-term borrowings - {16,885) (55,042)
- 9,459 9,395
Current
Secured
Current maturities of long-term loans - 16,485 £5,042
Unsecured
Repayabde on deniand, from*
Directors - 110 15,360
Members ‘ - 8,000 10,566
Crhers - 21,755 16,184
Osber loans, from*
Members - 67,500 67,500
Othets - 41,485 38,407
- 155,735 203,059
Motes:

Loan from financial iustimtion carried an interest rate of 14.40% per annum and is secured by way of first charge over the identified property, plant and cquipment and
fixed deposits held with banks wwards debt service teserve account and exclusive mortgape on identified ptopertes of Mr. Pmbburam Radhakrishnan, Managing
Dizector (MD) and a relative of one of the Key Managetial Personnc] (KMT). The foan is further secured by an unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantce of MDD,
relative of one of the KMP to the excent 0F 57,000 thousands, During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has endrely prepaid the outstanding borrowing.

Vehicle Joans are fully sccured by way of hypothecation of sperific vchicles aginst which the loan is availed, These loans are repayable in 36 to 60 monthly cquated
instalments with rate of interest ranging from 9.36% to 9.50% per annum.

Other loans ate tepayable within 12 months of drawdown, Further, out of the total bortowings, loans aggregating to TNl (31 Mareh 2021; 1130,000 thousands; 1 Apil
2020: ¥112,566 thousands) carry an nterest of 15% p.a. payable on a yoartedy basis and loans appregating to TNil (31 March 2021: ¥9,755 thousands; | Apiil 2020:
226,050 thousands) are interest free.

*Qut of the above, Prabhuram Radhakrishnan, Managing Director and Ramesh Chandra Majitha, Member and relative of a Dircctor, have pledged a portion of their
holding in the Holding Cornpany in connection with the loans availed by the Company aggregating to INil (31 March 2021: 3130,000 thousands; 1 Aneil 2020; TNl

Unseeored loans froin others agyregating to TN (31 harch 2021: INiL; 1 April 2020: 313,384 thousands), also ineiudes bill discounting facilitics avanea to meet the day
to day cash outflow requirement to fulfil the merchant obligations of scttling the payment in advance as ner the arrangement with the respective merchants, These loans
earmy an interest rate of (31 Mareh 2021: 16.00% , 1 Apal 2020: 16.50% - 18.25% per annum).

Net Debt reconcilintion:

Current borrowings Non-current Interest
borrowings accrued

Net debr as at 1 April 2020 148,017 64,437 3,873
Cash flows {net} {9,167) (38,093) -
Interest expense - 35,239
Interest paid during the year - - (39,066)
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 138,850 26,344 a6
Cash flows (net) (138,85 (20,344 -
Inrerest expense - - 32,087
Toterest paid dusing the year - - (32,133)

Net debt as at 31 March 2022 -
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b)

9

d)

9

Gratuity (continved)

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net defined benefit liability reconciliation
Net Defined Bencfie Linbility at the bepinning 9,501 5,509
Defined Bencfit Cost included in P & T, 2,987 2,409
Totat Remeasurements included in QCI 1,677 1,826
Employer Direct Benefit Payments (2,132) (242
MNet Defined Benefit Liabillty / {Asset) at the end 12,033 9,501
Mot (asset} / Hability
Present value of defined benefit obligation 12,033 4,501
Fair value of plan assers - -
Met defined benefit Hability/ (asset) recognized in balance sheet 12,033 9,501
Classl{ication
Current 2,783 2,16%
Nan current 9,250 7,332

12,033 9,501

Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.40% 6.89%
Salary escalation rare 0% o 4% 0% to 4%
Withdrnwal mte 16.56% 16.56%
Sensitivity analysis
‘Fhe sensitivity of the defined benefit obligatinn to changes in the principal assutnptons ste as under:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Change in assumptions
Salary escalation - up hy 1% - Iinpact 523 414
Salary cscalation - down by 1% - Iinpact (491) (388)
Withdrawal mtes - up by 1% - Impact 7 m
Withdrawal ratcs - down by 1% - Impact (32) 2)
Discount rates - up by 1% - Impact (3v8) (319
Discounr rates - down by 1% - Impa - 43 348
Sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assnmntions-namely discount rate, withdeawal rates and salary assumptions have been showa in the table above at
Maturity profile of the defined benefir obligations

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expected future cash flows (undiscounted)
Year 1 ayrud 2,169
Year 2 2,552 1,915
Year 3 2,077 1,666
Yeard 1,676 1,346
Year 5 1,330 1,051
Year6 w 10 3,612 2,706
Total 14,230 10,354
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21

22

23

24

25

26

Revenue from conteacts with customers

Sale of devices

Sale of services

- Device set-up and activation fce

- Commission and maintenanee charges
- Software snpport fee

- Others

Changes in contract assets ate as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Invoices raised that were included in the contract asscts balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to revenue recognised durng the year, excluding amounts biiled during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Changes in unearned and deferred revenue are as follows:

Balance at the bepinning of the year
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year

Other income

Intcrest income on fnancials assets measured ar smortised cost
(i) Fixed deposits with banks
(i) Interese ou income tax refund
(iii) Orther financial asscts

Paynbles no longer required,written back

Toreign exchange fluctuation gain, net

Others

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventaries at the beginning of the year
Inventorics at the cad of the year

Employee benefit expense

Salaties, wayes and bannis
Conuihotion to provident fund
Employee stock option expense
Gmuity

Leave compensation

Staff welfare expenses

Finauce cosis

Interest on leasc liabilines
Interest ou borrowings

Others
Depreciation and amottisation expense

Depteciation of property, plant and equipment
Depteciation of right-of-use assets
Amartisatinn of intanpible assets
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For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
579,462 657,398
35,212 60,390
2,198,149 1,352,980
6,446 -
1,336 2,441
2,820,605 2,080,209
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
4,693 12,370
(4,693) (12,370)
37,534 4693
37,534 4,693

For the yeat ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
44,013 -
44,013 .
For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
708 767
650 725
598 461
22,451 14,291
1,921 6,644
11,504 3,200
37,832 26,088

For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 Macch 2021

12,246

(12,246)

For the year ended

31 March 2022 71 March 2021
283,874 195,159
8,522 7,905
124,61 31,798
2,987 2,409
3,616 3,289
3,382 1,689
427,072 242,249

For the year ended

31 Matchb 2022 31 March 2021
1,510 2,284
32,087 35,230
- 595
33,597 38,118

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
109,165 99,474
13,470 14,426
1,779 4,710
414 £14n
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27 Other expenses

28

29

30

3

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Operating expenses
Transaction eommission expenses 1,804,965 1,088,811
(ii) General expenses
Powes and frel 1,953 2,715
Rent 1,129 TM7
Repaits and maintenance 809 1,177
Insurance 3936 2,115
Rates and raxes 12,078 6,410
Travelling and conveyance 5,645 3,989
Communication 71,038 26,514
Legal and professional charges 96,778 18,632
Sofrware expenses 53,578 22,170
Printing and stationary 1,876 909
Security services 1,428 1,089
Selting and macketing expenses 13,789 20,517
Office administrative expenses 3,162 12,599
Couricr & franking chacges 16,192 19,334
Bad debts written off 1,434 1,922
Lags an account of dispusal of invesument - 8,863
Payments te: andicnrs
- towneds statusory audi 1,420 1,400
- towards certification fee - 0o
- towards nut of pocket expenses 16 51
Bank chagges 5,602 2,261
Miscellaneous expenses 6472 1,322

2,105,100 1,241,297
Eatnings per equity share (EPES)
For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Loss atwibutable to the equity holders (425,092) (108,079)
Weighted averape number of equity shares for the calculadion of basic EPES et urB0 3,199,364
Add: Effect of potential Jilutive equity shares® - -
Weighted average nomber of shares considered for computation of Dilured EPES 3,347,886 3,199,364
Barnings per equity share (in absolute T)
- Basic and diluted EPS (126.97) (33.78)

*ihe effect of potential equity shares are oot consilered in the computation of Diluted TPES as they are anti dilutive.

Sepment reporting

Bascd on the Group's operations, deploying of point of sale terminals for electronic payments processing and other valne added services have been considered as the
unly reporiable segment. Further, all the services are rendered only in Indin and all the fixed assets are located in India as at the reporting period. Hence no separate
fNinancial disclosares have been provided for segment reporting,

Thete are no contingent liabilitics outstanding as av 31 March 2022, 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2020

Capital rislc managemeny

The Group’s objective when managing capital is 1o safeguard the its ability to continue as 1 going concern in ordet to provide teturns for sharcholders and benefits for
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capiral structore to reduce the cost of capital. Heace, the Company may adjust any dividend payments, tetum capital o
sharcholders o issue new shares or scll assets to reduce debr. Total capital is the cquity as shown in the statement of financial position, Cnerently, the Group primarily
monitoss its capitat structure on the basis of the fullowing gearing ratio, Management is continuonsly evolving strategies to optimize the retumns and reduce the risks, It
includes plans to uptimize the financial leverage of the Group.

As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Total borrowings - 165,194 212,454
Less: Cash and cash equivalents {188,106) {97,710 {41,126)
Net Debt - 67,484 171,328
"Total equity 349,085 144302 R R16
Net debt to equity ratio 0.00% 4
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32 The Miern and Small Enterprises have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors. Details of dues
to such parties are given below:

An at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
a3 The prineipal amonnt rermaining unpaid as ar the end of the year 32,928 6,050 515

b) The amount of interest accrued and remaining nnpaid at the end of the year - - -
¢} Amount of interest paid by the company iIn terms of Scetinn 16, of (MSMED Act 2006} along with the - - -
amuounts of payments made beyond the appoioted date during the year.

d) Amount of interest due and payable for the perind of delay in making payment withour the intercst - - -
specified under the (MSMED Act 2006)

) 'The amount of futther interest remnaining dne and payable in the socceeding years, nntil such date - - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance

as a deduerible expenditure nnder Section 23 of the (MSMED Act 2006)

33 Pair value measurements

{1} Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement nf financial position are grouped into three levels of a fair valoc hicrarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the abservability of significant inpnts to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Inpnts are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilites,

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices incladed within Level T that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (e as prices) or indirectly {i.c. derived from
prices).

Tevel 3: - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobsereable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation madel based on
assumptions that are neither supporred by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data,

{ii} Financial instmments by category
For amortised cost instrumeots, carrying value repsesents the best estimate of fair value,

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
FYTOCI Amortised FVTOCI Amortised BVTOCI Amortised
cost COsL cost
Flpancial asscts
Investments - - 500 - 23366 -
Trade receivables - 100,384 - 89,543 - 217
Cash aruk cash equivalents - 180,106 - 97,710 - 41,126
Other bank balances - 9463 - 9,171 - 9,673
Otber financial assets - 14,615 - 9,059 - 9,906
- 34,574 500 205,483 23,366 98,922
Financial liabilitles
Borrowings - - - 65,194 - 212,454
Lease liahilities - 19,375 - 15,774 - 25403
Trade payables - 171,592 . 99,478 - 124,478
Other financial liabilives - 293,022 - 158,678 - 91,685
- 483,989 - 439,124 - 454,020

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprisc of bo  ings, leasc liabilities, trade and othe _ jables, The main p _ seoft  : financial liabilides is to finance the
Company’s operations, The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly
from its operations,

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors oversees the management of these sisks. The Board of
Directors is supported by the senior maoagement that advises on financial fsks and the appropriate finpncial sk governanee framework for the Group. The senior
management provides assorance to the Holding Compzny’s Board of Directors that the Group’s financial risk actvities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks aze identified, measured and managed in accordance with its policies and risk objectives,

(i) The following table shows the Levels within the hicrarchy of financial assets measured at Fair value as at reponting penod:
31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Levell Level 2 Level3

Financial asseis
Tnvcstments - - 500 - - 23,166

(v

=

Financial instruments risk management

The Group is cxposed primarily to fluctuations in forcipn currency exchange rates, credit, liquidity and intetest mte risks, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Group has a rfisk management policy which covers 1isks associated with the Boancial assets and liabilides. The sk management policy is
approved by the Board of Directors. The focus of the risk management committee is vo assess the unprediciability of the financial environment and to mirigate potential
adverse effects on the financidl performance of the Groug
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or foture cash flows of a financial instroment will fluctoate because of changes in marker prices, Such changes in the values of
financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign cutrency exchange rates, interest mtes, credit, liquidity and other marker changes. The Group's exposure to
market risk is pamazily on account of forcign currency exchange rate risk

Foreign currency risk

Forcipn currency visk is the risk that the fair valne or funere cash flows of an exposure shall fluctuate because of change in forcium exchange rates, The Group's exposure
to the risk of change in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to its operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign enrrency). The Company is
exposed to exchange rate risk that arises from its foreign exchange expenses and capital purchases, primarily denominated in USD.

Sipnificant unhedped foreign curreney risk exposure relating w financial assers and fnandial liabilities txpressed in  terms are as follows:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020
Foreign T Poreign T Porcign T
curreny curteny cucreny
Financial liability
-UsD 1,495 150,606 792 58,548 225 17,054

Foreign currency sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the seositivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The Group’s expnsore to
foreign currency changes for all other currencies js not matetial.

31 March 2022 3t March 2021
Impact on the profit after tax for the year ended
T/USD - Increase by 5% 7,530 2,927
Z/USD - Decrense by 5% (7,530 (2,927)

Interest rate risk
The Group's borrowings are primarily fixed mate interest bearing loans. Hence, the company is not significantly exposed to interest rate dsk,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss adsing from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses
of both, the direct risk of default and the sk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit tisk is controlled by analysing credit limits and
credibworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has heen pranted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial instruments chat are
subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of tnde receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial assets.

None of the Company's cash cquivalents, other bank balances, Inans and security deposits were past due ot impaircd snd the Company exposure to customers is
diversified. Expasnres to cusinmers outstanding at the end of each teporting petiod are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses.
Historieal trends of impairment of trade receivables do not teflect any significant credit losses. The Company foliows ‘simplified 2pproach’ for recognition of impairment
loss allowance on tmde reccivables. The application of simplified approach does not tequire the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment
lass allowance based vo lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, tight from its inidal recognition, Basis the management assesment, it believes that the unimpaired amounts
that are past due by mnee than 3¢ days are still collectible in full, based on histotical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of custnmer credis risk,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that fonds are available for use as per requirements. The Group consistently genetated sufficient cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligntions
including lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

The tables below provide details regarding the contractnal matutiticr of signlficant financial linbilities as al

31 March 2022
Uptol From 1t More than Towl
year 3 years 3 yeats
Borrowings - o - .
Lease liabilities 9,724 13,452 - 23,175
"Frade payables 171,592 - - 171,592
Other financial liabilities 203,022 - - 293,022
31 March 2021
Upto1 From 1to More than Total
year J ycars 3 years
Bomowings 155,735 945¢ . 165,194
Fease liabilities 14,006 3,035 . 17,041
Trade payables 99,478 - - 99,478
Other financial liabilites 158,678 - - 158,678
1 April 2020
Uptol From 1to More than
Total
year 3 years 3 years
Borowings 203,059 9,345 - 212454
Lease liabilities 14,358 13,738 98 28,194
Trade navrahlez 124478 - - 124478
91,685 - - 91,685
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34 Related party disclosures

(=)

(®)

Name of related parties and nature of relationship

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Cholamandalam Investments and Finance Company Limited ("CIFCL")
(w.e.f 17 January 2022)

Holding company

Prabhuram Radhaktishnan

Maulik Bipin Shah (6l 17 January 2022)

Priti Manlik Shah

Mitesh Majithia (till 17 January 2022)

Ravi Kiran Pedarla (iill 17 January 2022)

Krishna Kishore Yinmakora (il 17 Januacy 2022)
Anil Bharadwaj Vedam (6l 17 Januacy 2022)

ey Managerial Personnel ("KMP")

Ramesh Chandra Majithia (till 17 January 2022)

Relative of KMP

Transactions with related parties
For the year ended

31 March 2022 11 March 2021
CIFCL
Loan availed 273,000 -
Finance cost 2,890 -
lnvesiment in equity shares of the Holding Company 400,000 -
Prabhuram Radhakrishnan
[nvesiment in equity shares of the Company 105,000 -
Sale of investment held in Payswiff PTE Ltd 2,283 -
Toterest free loan availed - 5,000
Remuneration
Pmbhuram Radhakrishnan 4,700 2,85t
Maulik Bipin Shah 3,600 2,851
Ravi Iiran Pedarla 3,500 2,851
Priti Shah hanlik 4,600 2,851
Anil Bharadwaj Yedam L5000 2,851
Krishna Kishore Vinnakorta 500 2,851

{c) Balances receivable/{payable) _
As at
3 March 2022 31 March 2021 1 April 2020

Priti Maulik Shah N (296) (10,848)
Krishna Kishore Vinnakota - (296) (1,761)
Anil Bhandwaj Vedam - (230) (2,209)
Raunesh Chandra Majitha - (8,000) (8,000
Maulik Bipin Shah - (265) (2,204)
Prabhuram Radhakrishnan {229) (5.177)

(i}

(i)

35

Note:

Ramesh Chandra Majithia, relative of KMP, had extended personal guarantee aggrepating ro 357,000 thousands and had mortgaged his personal identified property in
connection with the loans availed by the Gronp. The Group has repaid the cutstanding borrowings during the financial year ended 31 Mareh 2022, (Refer note 16(D).

Prabhutam Radhakrishoan had extended personal guaran

ind had morymjed his personal identified pro |

Group has cepaid the ousstanding borrowings during the financiat year ended 31 March 2022, (Refer note 16(1)).

¥ in conneetun with a loan availed by the Group. The

Prabhnrun Radhakrishoan and Ramesh Chandra Majitha had pledged a portion of their holding in the Holding Company in connection with the loans nvailed by the
Gronp (Refer Note: 16(i1)).

The Group has snffered losses in the current financial yeae amonnting to 424,296 thousands and as of 31 March 2022, its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
T149,034 thousands and has accumulated losses of 31,452,985 thonsands, mising doubts about its ability to continue as a going concern.

Durin the year, CIFCL, has acquired controlling stake in the Group and hes infused equity of 400,080 thousands (in addition to 105,000 thousands infused by the
Promoters) in the Group. Subsequently, the management has realigned its strategies to achieve growth ar the group level, by increasing the volume of its operations and
improve operatinnal performance and liquidity, incinding infusion of capital. Addicionally, snbsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has been sanctoned term loan
aod working capital facility agerognting to TNR 100 million, sufficient to mees its planned expansion of operntions and for meering its working capiral requirements,

Based on the foregoiug developments and assessment of other qoalitadve faceors, management believes that the Group will be able to sealize the assets and d!sch'lrge its
liabilities as recorded in these financial staterments in the normal course of operadons. Accordingly, the accompanying eonsolidated financial state o
have been preparcd considering going concern basis of accounting,
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40 Addirional diselosure as required under paragraph 2 of 'General Instructions for the prepararion of Consolidated Financial Sratements' of the Schedule ITI to the Act

{ii As atand for the year ended 31 March 2022:

(@}

Ner assets Share in profit or loss Share of OCI Share of total comprehensive income
Name of the entity As_a%of As a % of As_a%of As a% of
consolidated net Amgount consolidated profit Amount consolidated net Amount consolidated profit Amount
assets or loss assets or loss

Parent Company
Payswiff Technologies Private Limited 212.83% 742,951 105.71% (449,366) 42.87% {719 105.46% (450,085)
Subsidiardes
Indian
Payswiff Solutdons Private Limited 33.02% 115,268 32,07% {136,327 57.19% (959) 32.17% (137,236)
Payswiff Scrvices Pdvare Limited 0.02% 46 -1.43% 6,093 0.00% - -1.43% G095
Foreign
Payswiff PTE. Ltd. Singapore 0.00% - 2.03% (8,621) 0.00% - 2.02% (B.621)

245.87% 858,285 13837% (588,218) 100.06% (1,678) 138.22% (589,896)
Consolidation adjusrments -145.87% (509,200 -38.37% 163,126 ~0.06% 1 -38.22% 163,127
Net amount 100.00% 349,085 100.00% (425,092) 100.00% (L,677) 100.00% (426,769)
As at and for the year ended 51 March 2021:

Net assets Share in profit or loss Share of OCI Shate of roral comprehensive income
Name of the entity As_a%of Asa % of As_a%of Asa % of
consolidated net Amount consolidated profit Amount coosolidated net Amount consolidated profit Amount
assets or loss assers or loss

Parent Company
Payswiff Technologies Private Limired 99.68% 562,317 124.68% (134,756) 91.74% (14,9443 120.37% {149,700)
Subsidiaries
Indian
Payswiff Sclutions Privare Limited 155.71% 224,697 -10.13% 10,547 5.43% (885) -8.09% 10,062
Payswift Services Private Limited 4.18% (6,038 0.34% (363) 0.00% - 0.29% 363)
Foreign
Payswiff PTE. Ltd. Singapore 9.61% 13,865 -17.29% 18,688 0.00% - -15.03% 18,668

550.82% 794,841 97.60% (105,484) 97.17% (15,829) 97.54% (121,313)
Consolidation adjustments -450.82% {(650,539) LAY (2,595) 2.85% 461) 2.46% (3,056)
Ner amount 100.00% 144,302 100.00% (108,079) 100.00% (16,290) 100.00% (124,369)

The disclosure as above represents separate informaron for each of dhe consolidated entities before elimination of inter—company transactions. The net impacts on elimination of inter—company transactions/profis or
fInsses)/ consolidation: adjustments have been disclosed sepatatcly. Based on the Group structure, the management is of the vicw thar the above distlosurs is appropmatz under the requirements of the Act
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41 First time adoption of Ind AS

1,

R

b)

These are the Growp's fiest financial smtements prepated in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policics, as set aut in Nute 2, have been applied in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, For the puspose of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Geoup has followed the ymidance preseribed
under Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Indian Acconnting Standards (“Ind AS 101%), with effect from 1 April 2020 (“uransition date”).

In preparing its Ind AS Balince Sheet as at 1 April 2020 and in prescnting the comparative informatinn for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has adjusted
amounts weported previonsly in financial statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, This note explains how the transitinn from previous GAAP to Ind
AS has affected the Gronp's balance sheet and financial perfortnance,

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions applicd
Set onr helow are the applicable Ind AS101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAT to Ind AS.

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
On urznsition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets recognised as ac 1
April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the pronerry, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 116 ecquires an entity o assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accorcance with Ind AS £16, chis assessment should be
cartied out at the inception of the contract or arrangement, Ind A3 101 pmvides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at
the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expecied 1o be not material. The Company bas clected 1o apply this exemption for such contracts /
ALCANECMOnis,

De-recognition of fnanclal assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurting on or after the date of transition
to Ind AS, However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing,
provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to fnancial assets and financial fiabifities derecognised as a result of past transactons was obtained at the
time of initally acconnting for those transactions, The Company has glected to apply the de-tecognition of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Tnd

AL

Share based payments

Tnd AS 102 Share based payments requizes an entity to record the options on their fair value instead of intrinsic value, [od AS 101 permits 4 first time adopter to ignozc
snch requiternent for the options already vested as on transition date {e, | Aprl 2020). The Company has elected to apply this exemptions for such vested options,

Estimates

As per Ind AS 101, an entity's estimates In accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consisient with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with the previons GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates wetce in error, The Company’s estimates noder Ind AS are consistent with
the above requicenient.

% eura

Classification and measurement of financial ~~~2ts and lia s
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification ¢ ancial asset. _ .. _._> basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Purthes, the standard
permits measurement of financial assets acconnted at amaortised cost based on facts and circomstances existing at the date of traasition i retrospective application is

impraericable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classificarion of financial assets based on facts and citcumstances thar exist on the date of tansition, Measnrement of the
femancial assets acconnted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable,

Reconciliation between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

Reconcillation of total eqnity

31 March 2021 1 Apxlt 2020

Total eanity as per previous GAAP 142,593 54,423
Add:
Unwinding of discount on sccurity deposit 461 -
Finance liabilities measured at amordized cost 2,190 4,093
Adjustments refated to recognition of ripht to nse asset and lease liabiliites under Ind-AS 116 {1,542) -
Total equity as per Ind AS _ 144,302 58,516
Reconniliatlen of total comprehensive income

31 March 2021
Teal profit as per previous GAAP (126,077)
Add:-
Unwinding of discount on secuority deposit 461
Adjusunent for recopnition of right to use asset and lease liabiliites per Ind-AS 116 (1,542
Reclassification of gains on re-measugement nf defined benefit obligation reclassified to OCI 1,826
Reversal of loss on investmeots measured at FVTOCT 14,003
Finance liabilities measored at amortized cost (2,738)
lmpact due to accounting of employee stock opdon plan using, fair valuztion moded 5988
Loss after tax as per Ind AS (108,079
Other comprehensive income {16,290)
Total comprehensive income as pet Ind AS (124,369}
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¢} Motes 1o the reconciliations

Security deposits
Under previous GAAP, security deposits were initially recogniscd at transaction price. Subscquently, finance income was recognised based on contractaal terms, if any.
Under Ind AS, (i) the seeurity deposits are to be recognised at fair value, (i) interest income on such security deposits are to be recopnised through effective intevest
method and (i) lease expense to be amortised over the period of lease on a straight line basis, Accordingly, the Group has recognised the security deposit at present
value using the maeket rate of interest and the differential deposit amount is recognised aver the periad of lease,
Leases
Under Ind AS, each lease arrangement with the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, is reflected on the halance sheer as a right-of-
use asset and a lease lability. Accordingly the Company has used the modified retrospective methnd to all lease contrscts existing as at 1 April 2020. This has resulted in
recognising a right-of-use asset and a corresponding leasc liability. In the Statement of Profit and Loss, operating lease expenses which were recognised as rental
expenses is now recognised as depreciation expense fnr the right-of-use assec and finance cost for interest accrued on lense liability.
Employee stock options
Under previous GAAP, the Company had recorded the ESOP Cost using instrinic value per option, Howeves, under Ind AS, the Company has recorded the ESOP
cost using fair valnation model, Further the Company has insrtuted Employce Stock Option Plan 2018 (the "Scheme") for afl the cligible employees of the Company
and its snbsidarics. Under Ind AS 102, alf such share based payment transacrions ameng group entities are required to he recognised Ly the entity veceiving the goods or
services. Accordingly, employee stock nption expenses pertaining to options pranted to the employees of the subsidiaries were derecngnised with a4 comesponding
inerease in the investment vatue.
FVTOCI financial assets
Under Indian GAAP, the Company acconnted for long-term investments at cost less provision for other than tempnrary diminution in the valne of investments. Under
Ind AS, the Company has designated such investments as FYTOCL Ind AS requires FVIOCT investments to be measured at fair value. At the date of transition to Ind
AS, difference berweea the instruments fair value and Indian GAAP carrying amount has been recognised as 2 scparate component of equity, in the retained carnings,
net of related deferred taxes.
Remcasurement of post-employment benefit obligations
Bath under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Compaoy recognised eosts related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuaral basis. Duder Indian GAAP,
the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to statement of profic or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasutements cotuprising of actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in the balance sheet with a cotresponding debit or credit to rerained earnings through OCI.
Retained carnlngs
Retained carnings a5 at 1 April 2020 has been adjusted consequent to the above fod AS tansition adjustments,
Staternent of cash Mows
The teansition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS had no material impact on the staement of cash Aows
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